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General information

1.1 Strategic overview

Vision

A society free from poverty

Mission

Facilitate sustainable development by strengthening civil society organisations involved in poverty 
eradication through enhanced grant funding and research.

Values

As a development agency, we subscribe to the following values, which are embedded in our 
performance management system:

Integrity

	 We act with integrity and accept responsibility for our actions
	 We conduct our activities in an accountable and transparent manner

Dignity

	 We show respect for self and others
	 We treat other people the way we would like to be treated

Empowerment

	 We seek and realise the potential in all people
	 We encourage performance and embrace a positive outlook
	 We build capacity in our people to improve performance

Accountability and responsibility

	 We make informed decisions collaboratively
	 We honour obligations, expectations and requirements
	 We adhere to processes, systems and policies
	 We assume responsibility for our actions and the consequences thereof
	 We perform duties according to set standards
	 We commit to enhancing personal, team and organisational performance
	 We accept accountability for the outcomes of our actions
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Transparency

	 We include all relevant stakeholders when making decisions
	 We share and communicate relevant information openly
	 We conduct our activities in a transparent manner

Excellence

	 We promote, recognise and reward excellent service delivery to all our stakeholders
	 We show competence in what we are doing
	 We continuously implement improvement strategies to provide excellent service

Partnering
 
	 We recognise our mutual interdependence
	 We promote teamwork and support one another

1.2 Legislative mandate

The NDA is a public entity, listed under Schedule 3A of the Public Finance Management Act 
(PFMA).  It was established in November 1998 by the National Development Agency Act (Act No 
108 of 1998 as amended), and reports to the Parliament of the Republic of South Africa through 
the Minister for Social Development.
 
Its primary mandate is to contribute towards the eradication of poverty and its causes by granting 
funds to civil society organisations (CSOs) to:

	 Implement development projects in poor communities
	 Strengthen the institutional capacity of CSOs that provide services to poor communities

The secondary mandate is to:

	 Promote consultation, dialogue and sharing of development experience between CSOs and 
relevant organs of state

	 Debate development policy
	 Undertake research and publication aimed at providing the basis for development policy
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1.3 Organisational structure 
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1.4 Minister’s foreword

This year marks the 20th anniversary of our democracy and 
it is important that we reflect on the strides that we have 
made as a nation.  As I look back, I am happy to report on 
the achievements we have made in uplifting communities 
through the National Development Agency’s (NDA) 
community development programmes.

During the year under review, the NDA placed 
more emphasis on capacity building of civil society 
organisations to ensure their long-term sustainability 
so as to drive grassroots community development. To 
this extent, 2 059 civil society organisations and Non-profit 
Organisations participated in capacity building programmes.

The NDA continued to play a critical role in levelling the playing fields between those with formal 
and informal education.  All its programmes empowered beneficiary communities in terms of skills 
acquisition, be it in the area of early childhood development (ECD), food security or enterprise 
development. At the end of the programmes, communities were left in a better position than 
before and armed with skills that enabled them to influence their futures positively and end the 
cycle of poverty.

On the ECD front, the NDA funded 20 ECD sites that benefited 3 654 children. The Agency also 
started 150 food gardens to ensure a constant supply to beneficiary ECDs. To make information 
and stimulation available to children in outlying communities, four ECD mobile toy libraries were 
purchased to operate in disadvantaged communities in the Western Cape, Eastern Cape and 
Gauteng.

I strongly believe that it is through education, amongst other things, that South Africa can move 
forward as a country.  I therefore appeal to private sector companies, government organisations 
and individuals to please support the NDA’s ‘Adopt an ECD’ campaign. The campaign is aimed 
at increasing resource flows to those ECDs that are struggling in terms of educational materials, 
infrastructure and teacher training. It all starts with each one of us making a difference in our 
communities.

I would like to take this opportunity to thank the NDA Board for guiding the organisation towards 
a sustainable future. The Board, whose three-year term has now come to an end, found the NDA 
operating as an ailing Agency and steered it towards finding a niche in the development arena 
and avoiding duplication of resources.
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My sincere gratitude also goes to Dr Vuyelwa Nhlapo, Chief Executive Officer and her executive 
committee for providing daily management and leadership to the organisation.  A special thank 
you to the NDA staff who, apart from working with our civil society organisations and empowering 
them with technical and institutional management skills, participated enthusiastically in my 
outreach programmes to various communities.

Bathabile Dlamini
Minister of Social Development
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1.5 Review by the Chairman 

The 2013/14 financial year-end comes at a time when 
South Africa is ushering in 20 years of the democratic 
dispensation.  During these past 20 years much was 
accomplished but still more work remains ahead of us in 
order to achieve total freedom. 

The National Development Agency (NDA) is mandated 
to implement programmes aimed at poverty eradication.  
Addressing poverty, along with unemployment and 
inequality is what defines the overall task for the nation 
in order to deliver a complete democratic dividend. To 
achieve this dividend depends on the investment we make 
as a nation in programmes and projects targeting the poorest 
of our citizens. 

In the year under review, the NDA successfully built collaborations with provincial government 
social development departments to broaden the frontiers for development. We wish to thank 
these departments for enlisting the services of the NDA’s Capacity Building Unit to strengthen 
civil society organisations in their provinces. Furthermore, the launch of the Early Childhood 
Development (ECD) campaign calling on South Africans to adopt ECD centres brought to fruition 
the Board’s desire to shift the organisation to leverage its limited capacity through partnerships.

We expect the NDA’s Capacity Building programme to grow and for the organisation to be 
positioned as the institution of choice for developing the capacity of Civil Society Organisations 
(CSO) in South Africa. With declining donor funds, many CSOs operating in townships and 
rural areas are bereft of organisational development interventions. Poor capacity means poor 
implementation, which translates into less than effective poverty eradication programmes. 

The chief concern for the NDA in the coming years will be to continue increasing the scale of 
its interventions. With limited funding, our method of increasing the scale of NDA’s impact will 
be the continued implementation of campaigns, capacity building of CSOs and influencing the 
development practice in NDA’s areas of focus. With respect to influencing the development 
practice, the main objective is to develop effective practices and standards based on the 
experience of programmes implemented in South Africa and globally. This aspect of our work 
is concerned with the question: what makes programmes work, as well as work well? Insights 
gleaned from an already existing body of work will be consolidated into a compendium of lessons 
learned and toolkits that can be used to deepen effective practices and standards. Through the 
Capacity Building programme, these practices will be shared with practitioners. 
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During the 2014/15 financial year, the NDA will implement the Jessica Fortuin Fellowship (JFF) 
programme. The JFF programme is a training and development initiative that will recruit a cadre 
of young promising professionals who will be groomed into leading development practitioners. 
Jessica Fortuin was the NDA’s Western Cape provincial manager who made a great contribution 
to poor communities in the province and beyond. 

In the year under review, the Department of Social Development and the National Treasury 
commissioned a review of the NDA with a view to framing the niche area of focus that the NDA 
should pursue going forward. The NDA and these departments will work together to conclude the 
process towards creating a stronger fiscal and regulatory space for the organisation. 

We wish to take this opportunity to thank the executive leadership of the NDA led by Dr Vuyelwa 
Nhlapo for having embraced the reorientation of the NDA.  Doing more with less has become the 
NDA’s reality and the management team has risen to the challenge. 

The Board’s commitment and expertise in poverty eradication has been a fundamental attribute 
that has turned the tide for the NDA. This financial year brought to an end the 3-year period in 
office for the Board.  We would like to thank the government for having entrusted us with such a 
great opportunity to serve and to make a difference.  We wish to express our sincere gratitude for 
the support the NDA has received from the management of the Department of Social Development 
led by the Director General.

To serve under a calibre of a leader such as Minister Bathabile Dlamini is a pleasure and makes 
all the sacrifices worthwhile. We wish to thank the Minister for her humble and direct leadership 
style. 

Malose Kekana
Chairman
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1.6	 Chief	Executive	Officer’s	overview

The end of the year brings the benefit of retrospect, enabling 
us to reflect on the vision we aspire to uphold and how 
far we have moved in attaining the goals associated 
with that. It is my honour as the CEO to look upon the 
previous financial year and give a report of a remarkable 
performance overall. The NDA has managed to achieve 
an 87.5% overall annual performance against targets 
set in the Annual Performance Plan 2013/14.

We have touched the nation through our programmes 
in Early Childhood Development (ECD), capacity 
building of Non-profit Organisations (NPOs) which has 
direct impact on communities and poor households, income 
generation and food and nutrition security. 

This was in support of government’s ambition to overcome the challenge of poverty and 
unemployment. We initiated and supported community based programmes that created capacity 
amongst communities to start income generating projects so as to increase household income 
levels and create sustainable jobs for themselves, as well as influence national policy that 
supports the development agenda. During the period under review the NDA disbursed R83.3m to 
284 projects as part of support to these community based projects, reaching 6 039 beneficiaries.

Early Childhood Development (ECD) 

In contributing towards strengthening the capacity of ECD practitioners in child development, the 
NDA enrolled 236 ECD practitioners in NQF level 4 training. Further to this, the NDA funded 39 
ECD sites for infrastructure improvement which benefited 5 714 children. To contribute towards 
proper nutrition in ECD centres, 150 food gardens in ECD sites were funded during this period.

Food security and income generation

The NDA succeeded in creating 1 060 job opportunities through food security and income 
generation projects.

Resource mobilisation through partnerships

To attract partners to assist NDA to deliver on its mandate, we have established the Stakeholder 
Relations and Partnerships capability to prioritise creating sustainable partnerships for 
development. In addition to NDA’s formal income stream from the National Treasury, we were 
able through these partnerships to mobilise R103.7m third party funds for poverty alleviation 
programmes. This shows a positive growth of 22% from the R80.6m mobilised in the 2012/13 
financial year.
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Our people

NDA staff remained the cornerstone of our success and sustainability in 2013/14. We also 
continued to create an environment in which people performed at their peak. During the period 
under review, engagement levels indicated an improvement of 3.66% as compared to the previous 
year. This clearly shows how people issues have been put at the top of management’s agenda. 
85% of NDA staff participated in the climate survey and the positive rating achieved was 66% 
against a target of 65%.

It is management’s view that there is a need to relook at the operating model of the organisation 
to enable us to stretch our mandate to reach those we may previously have omitted. On reflection 
of our achievements there is no doubt that there is room for improvement, which is why the 
outcome of the NDA Review will play a significant role in the direction of the organisation. The 
recommendation emanating from the review will give the necessary guidance to steer the 
organisation to the next level, allowing the NDA to further penetrate the wide spectrum of our 
society in the spirit of alleviating poverty.

Conclusion

The past year has shown NDA to have been successful in carrying out its obligations to poor 
communities and the country as a whole. Essential building blocks have been put in place in terms 
of our structures, organisational culture and people.  I would like to express my appreciation to the 
Minister and the Deputy Minister of Social Development and NDA Board for their leadership and 
overwhelming support throughout the year.  They have provided invaluable strategic guidance in 
helping the NDA to deliver on its mandate of contributing towards poverty eradication.

Dr Vuyelwa Nhlapo
Chief	Executive	Officer
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2.1 Statement of responsibility for performance information

Statement of responsibility for performance information for the year ended 31 March 2014

The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for the preparation of the public entity’s performance 
information and for the judgments made in this information.

The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for establishing and implementing a system of internal 
controls designed to provide reasonable assurance as to the integrity and reliability of performance 
information.

In my opinion, the performance information fairly reflects the operations of the National 
Development Agency for the financial year ended 31 March 2014.

Dr Vuyelwa Nhlapo
Chief	Executive	Officer

Performance information
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2.2 Overview of the public entity’s performance

2.2.1 Overview of the service delivery environment

To fulfill its mandate to contribute towards the eradication of poverty and its causes, the NDA 
provided grants to Civil Society Organisations (CSOs) which implemented projects and 
programmes that fostered household and community self-reliance. Further to delivering on its 
mandate, the NDA executed the following key priority areas to impact significantly on poverty 
levels in identified localities. These included:

	y Funding of CSOs to implement poverty eradication programmes and projects
	y Improvement of programme and project performance through effective and efficient 

monitoring
	y Establishment of the Programme Management Unit (PMU)
	y Resource mobilisation for poverty eradication programmes and projects in NDA priority 

areas
	y Adopt an ECD Campaign
	y Food Security Campaign
	y Conversion of NDA offices into Advisory Centres.

2.2.2  Early Childhood Development

The NDA contributes to the ECD sector through interventions that support food security at ECD 
sites and improve the infrastructure of ECD sites. The agency provided financial resources to 20 
ECD sites despite the limited resources at its disposal. The ECD centres, supported by the NDA, 
enrolled 3 654 children.

Supporting food security interventions at ECD sites

Recognising the importance of balanced nutrition at ECD sites, the NDA provided financial 
assistance to ECD sites to establish 150 food gardens that served as a source of consistent 
access to food for learners. The emphasis was on providing the necessary inputs to enable a 
food garden to be established as well as facilitating technical training for identified staff to produce 
food.

Improving ECD infrastructure

The NDA made limited infrastructure investment in the amount of R10.8m as part of an 
holistic approach of enhancing access to provision of quality ECD education. The contribution 
to infrastructure includes funding of four ECD Mobile Toy Libraries in the Western Cape, Eastern 
Cape and Gauteng. The Mobile Toy Library programme adopts a holistic approach to development 
of children and places the family as a key pillar in creating an enabling environment for growth 
and prosperity. It meaningfully engages young mothers, youth and child-headed families in a 
community outreach programme which fosters social cohesion. The Mobile Toy Library visits 
each ward twice a week for three hours to conduct ECD programmes and community outreach.
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Adopt an ECD campaign

The NDA conceptualised the “Adopt an ECD campaign” as part of an activity of the South African 
ECD conference and the ECD Awards. The purpose of the “Adopt an ECD campaign” is to 
facilitate, advocate and lobby for expanded access to provision of ECD in poor communities.  
The campaign is premised on the assumption that South Africa commands sufficient resources 
to meet current and future needs of learners in the ECD sector. Improved access to ECD can 
therefore create a solid foundation for development, lifelong learning and mitigate vulnerability to 
structural poverty.

During the year under review, the minister launched the campaign nationally, followed by provincial 
launches held in partnership with the MECs for Social Development. The NDA has taken over 
the management of the annual South African Early Childhood Development (SA ECD) Awards 
from ABSA. NDA also finalised the Resource Mobilisation and Partnership strategy to facilitate 
the involvement of the corporate sector and other key stakeholders, which to date has solicited 
R560 000 from private donors.

2.2.3 Food Security programme

The National Development Agency (NDA) has worked for more than a decade to find ways of 
enhancing food security as a measure of overcoming the challenge of poverty.  An increased focus 
on food security and agro-processing in rural and peri-urban areas has allowed NDA to develop 
significant experience and expertise in identifying; resourcing; capacitating and monitoring the 
implementation of these initiatives.

In the period under review, the NDA committed R15.7m to food security programmes and projects. 
Apart from working with the Department of Social Development’s provincial offices, the agency 
worked closely with the Department of Agriculture to source capital, expertise and collaboration in 
project implementation. The specific contribution related to the establishment of household food 
gardens – giving starter packs, training and support on food production; community food gardens 
and support for emerging farmers.

Given the track record in implementing food security interventions in poor communities, the NDA 
was able to provide significantly higher additional value to all grantees than would have been 
achieved through simply making a cash contribution to these initiatives. In addition, the NDA 
partnered with civil society structures to capacitate and empower members involved in food 
security initiatives to improve prospects of sustainability beyond the scope of the NDA funding. 
It is this value of strengthening capacity for sustainability that makes NDA a leading partner in 
implementing food security interventions.

Food Security campaign

The overall purpose of the campaign is to facilitate expanded access to food security for poor 
households and communities whilst creating sustainable livelihoods. As part of the campaign, the 
NDA worked with the Department of Social Development to implement a model for the household 
food and nutrition security. The aim of the programme is to ensure food security in the most 
remote areas of the country. The programme involved the establishment of a provincial “food 
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bank” with community depots in the districts. The depots have significant storage facilities to 
warehouse while some donated food and bulk procured food.

2.2.4 Income Generation programme

The NDA invested significant resources in income generating projects that seek to create 
alternative or complementary income streams and employment for poor households in pre-
determined localities.  In the period under review, the NDA committed R32.9m to programmes 
and projects aimed at empowering the poor, particularly in rural areas, to participate in the 
mainstream economy. These rural enterprises created 690 sustainable jobs.

The income generation programmes and projects that the NDA funded included mostly “traditional 
sectors” that either required limited capital input (comparatively) and/or a low skills base. These 
projects included amongst others sewing, primary agriculture (crop and livestock), brick-making, 
arts and craft, tourism, bakery, and some hydroponics. Generally, these enterprises required a 
low skills base. Consequently, poor communities with very little expert knowledge were able to 
access these sectors and generated employment and income for themselves to improve their 
living standards.

2.2.5 Research, policy, monitoring and evaluation

The NDA’s performance with regards to research and development for financial year 2013/14 
improved significantly from the previous financial year.  NDA’s research and development focused 
on four areas: research and policy, monitoring and evaluation, capacity building and knowledge 
management.

Research and Policy unit

The NDA approach of maximising the use of limited available financial resources adopted a 
strategy to partner with state-funded research institutions to conduct research and disseminate 
information.  During the period under review, the unit signed six MoUs with a number of academic 
research units and state-funded research agencies to support and collaborate with the NDA on 
research and policy work.

Through partnership with research Institutions, NDA produced four research studies reports. 
Three of those were in collaboration with the Human Science Research Council (HSRC) and 
one research study report was produced in collaboration with a research NPO (Co-operative for 
Research and Education (CORE)).

In order to inform and enhance programming processes, the NDA produced six policy briefs on 
a range of developmental subjects based on research studies conducted. In addition to these  
research studies conducted and policy briefs produced, two symposiums were hosted in 
collaboration with the University of Pretoria and the HSRC which focused on food and nutrition 
security and on early childhood development specifically on policy implications for ECD 
practitioners.
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Monitoring and evaluation (M&E)

The NDA established processes, systems and tools to monitor and evaluate its operations. 
During the year under review, 82 midterm and 66 closeout evaluation reports on NDA funded 
projects nationally were produced. These reports are essential for informing project planning, 
implementation and monitoring. In addition, 47 project performance monitoring visits were 
conducted as part of an attempt towards effective management of projects. Further to this, the 
NDA developed an impact evaluation protocol that will be used as a guide when conducting 
the impact evaluation of projects funded by the agency over the past five	years. The impact 
evaluation will be conducted in the next financial year to measure the impact of these projects and 
provide information and measurements of effect on these projects to the intended targets.

During the period under review, the agency worked towards strengthening reporting processes 
to ensure that performance information and evidence provided is reliable. All performance 
information reported by the agency against the Annual Performance Plan targets was verified. As 
part of institutionalising, M&E integrated processes for all the major business operation areas of 
the NDA were mapped. These processes will assist the agency in standardising its operational 
processes and developing systems that will improve efficiencies in business operation.

2.2.6 Capacity building 

In acknowledging the significant role that CSOs play in strengthening community building and 
cohesion for developmental action, the NDA developed a NPO Capacity Building programme 
towards supporting CSOs. The approach, in its developmental perspective, provides CSOs with 
the necessary resources, both financial and material, to ensure that when a CSO is supported 
by NDA, its resource needs are also met to ensure that the project is successful and sustainable.

During the year under review, the NDA entered into agreements with provincial Departments of 
Social Development to deliver the NPO’s organisational capacity strengthening programme to 
CSOs rendering social welfare services to communities. The programme was funded by five 
provinces (North West, Northern Cape, Eastern Cape, Limpopo and KwaZulu-Natal). Over and 
above this, the NDA also continued to provide NDA funded CSOs with organisational strengthening 
interventions.

Through the capacity building programme, the NDA managed to train 4 384 staff members 
from 2 059 CSOs and NPOs.  In terms of strengthening the capacity of practitioners to deal with 
child development, 236 ECD practitioners were enrolled in a formal ECD training programme. 
The NDA measured improvement of knowledge and practice from participants of the capacity 
strengthening programme and reported an improvement of 80%.  The graph below depicts the 
total achievement against capacity building targets for the period under review.
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2.2.7 Establishment of the Programme Management Unit (PMU)

The Programmes Management Unit (PMU) was established with the aim of providing programme 
and project management services to private and public sector organisations locally and 
internationally. The NDA also strengthened its stakeholder relations capabilities with the aim of 
mobilising resources for a poverty eradication programme through sustainable partnerships.

The table below is a detailed breakdown of the partnerships signed during the period under 
review.

Name of Organisation Programme Amount ‘R’

DSD Limpopo Capacity building 3 000 000 

DSD Eastern Cape Capacity building 19 363 000

DSD KZN Capacity building 16 606 722

DSD Northern Cape Capacity building 2 680 000

DSD North West Capacity building 6 734 000

Seriti Institute Collaboration in all NDA programmes N/A

SANEDI Collaboration/alternative energy 8 115 380

National Lotteries Board Capacity building N/A

Ithala Limited Collaboration/ECD Campaign 100 000 

KZN Wildlife Adopt an ECD 100 000 

DSD Free State Capacity building 3 600 000

DSD KZN Mobile ECD 1 700 000

SASSA School uniform cooperatives 8 000 000

DTI (ECF) Income generation/food security 25 000 000

DSD North West Capacity building/food Security 3 540 000

Total 103 739 203 

During the year under review the NDA mobilised R103.7m towards the implementation of 
programmes and projects in ECD, Food Security, Income Generation and Capacity Building.

2.2.8	 Conversion	of	provincial	offices	into	Advisory	Centres

The NDA converted provincial offices into advisory offices with an objective of extending its 
footprint and service offering to a wider client base in the provinces. The centres also support the 
objective of expanding and enhancing the brand value of the NDA as a premium development 
agency to the broader public. During the year under review the NDA established 28 Advisory 
Centres which are fully operational and managed by information officers. 
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2.2.9 Enhancing NDA visibility and brand

Traditional Media Publicity

Publicity to the value of R3.1m was solicited in various electronic and print media platforms for 
NDA funded projects and the “Adopt an ECD campaign”. The value above is made up of free 
publicity and discounted paid-for publicity received.  Most of which was due to good relationships 
and partnerships established with media houses such as The New Age, SABC 2. ANN7, Vuka 
Afrika and Top Women in Business and Government. Going forward the NDA will work with 
Government Communications Information Systems (GCIS) to access community radio stations 
which will help reach more NDA target markets. 

Electronic communications

The NDA used social media platforms (Twitter and Facebook) to improve NDA visibility. These 
platforms were dedicated to the “Adopt an ECD campaign”, which proved to be popular with a 
following that varied depending on content posted onsite. 

Improvement of NDA brand

In terms of improving the awareness of the NDA brand, more work still needs to be done. 
Internal communication platforms were used to convert NDA staff, especially in the provinces, 
into brand ambassadors and various publicity platforms have been used to showcase the NDA 
brand to external audiences. Externally, more face-to-face platforms with key stakeholders and 
an advertising campaign will be needed to improve the NDA brand.

2.3 Key policy developments and legislative changes

There were no major changes to relevant policies or legislation that may have affected the NDA’s 
operations during the period under review or future financial periods.  However, it should be noted 
that National Treasury and the Department of Social Development appointed a service provider 
to conduct a review of the NDA mandate. This will focus primarily on the NDA’s current functions, 
what it should be doing and opportunities that the NDA can explore that are currently not catered 
for by other development finance and government institutions.
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2.3.1 Summary of expenditure per programme

The table below illustrates how the entity’s resources were spent, per programme, in the 2012/13 
and 2013/14 financial years.

Sub- Programme 
Name

2013/2014 2012/2013
Budget

R’000
Actual

Expenditure
R’000

(Over)/
Under  

Expenditure
R’000

Budget
R’000

Actual
Expenditure

R’000

(Over)/
Under  

Expenditure
R’000

Programme 1:  
Development  
Management

143 005 112 777 30 228 110 860 109 996 864

Programme 2:  
Research and  
Development

5 125 5 138 ( 13) 2 633 4 513 (1880)

Programme 3:  
Capacity Building

40 184 37 058 3 126 2 650 2 819 (169)

Programme 4:  
Administration  and  
support

87 939 86 227 7 218 79 209 80 158 (948)

Total 276 253 241 200 35 053 195 352 197 486 (2 134)

2.4 Programme performance

2.4.1 Programme 1: Development management

No# Performance  
Indicator

Actual 
achievement 

2012/13

Planned 
target

2013/14

Actual 
achievement

2013/14

Deviation 
from planned 

target to  
actual 

achievement 
for 2013/14

Comments on  
deviations

1 Rand value of 
allocation to 
projects and  
programmes

R79m R65m R71.5m  R6.5m Planned target 
exceeded due 
to additional 
commitments of 
third party funds.

2 Rand value 
allocated to ECD 
programme

R23m R20m R22.9m R2.9m Planned target 
exceeded due to 
reprioritisation of 
budget.
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No# Performance  
Indicator

Actual 
achievement 

2012/13

Planned 
target

2013/14

Actual 
achievement

2013/14

Deviation 
from planned 

target to  
actual 

achievement 
for 2013/14

Comments on  
deviations

3 Rand value 
allocated to 
Food Security 
programme

R18.7m R20m R15.7m (R4.3m) Planned target not 
achieved due to 
reprioritisation of 
budget. However, 
the planned 
programme 
targets were met 
with reduced 
budget.

4 Rand value 
allocated 
to Income 
Generation 
programme

R30.2m R25m R32.9m R7.9m Planned target 
exceeded due 
to additional 
commitment of 
third party funds.

5 Number of 
projects and 
programmes 
funded (ECD, 
Food Security 
and Income 
Generation)

82 65 75 10 Planned target 
exceeded due 
to additional 
commitment of 
third party funds.

6 Number of Food 
Gardens on ECD 
sites funded

153 95 150 55 Funded ECD sites 
and additional 
sites from the 
campaign resulted 
in planned target 
being exceeded.

7 Rand value of 
funds mobilised 
for poverty 
eradication 
programmes

R80.6m R50m R103.7m R53.7 Accelerated 
resource 
mobilisation 
efforts, particularly 
on NPO 
strengthening with 
provincial DSD 
resulted in target 
being exceeded.

8 Number of 
children enrolled 
in ECD sites

4 122 3 095 5 714 2 619 Funded ECD sites 
enrolled more 
children than 
planned target.
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No# Performance  
Indicator

Actual 
achievement 

2012/13

Planned 
target

2013/14

Actual 
achievement

2013/14

Deviation 
from planned 

target to  
actual 

achievement 
for 2013/14

Comments on  
deviations

Number of ECD 
sites receiving 
core funding from 
NDA

26 20 20 0 Target achieved

Number of ECD 
sites funded for 
infrastructure 
improvement

New Indicator 15 39 24 Planned target 
exceeded due 
to additional 
resources 
primarily from the 
North-West ECD 
Massification 
Programme.

9 Number of ben-
eficiaries of NDA 
funded projects  
and programmes

7 602 2 340 6 039 3 699 Planned target 
exceeded due to 
funded projects 
and programmes 
delivering more 
beneficiaries.

10 Number of jobs 
created in Income 
Generation

New indicator 348 690 234 Planned target 
exceeded due to 
funded income 
generating 
projects and 
programmes 
delivering more 
jobs.

11 Number of jobs 
created in ECD

507 91 185 94 Planned target 
exceeded due 
to funded ECD 
projects delivering 
more jobs.

12 Number of jobs 
created in Food 
Security

477 121 185 64 Planned target 
exceeded due 
to funded food 
security projects 
delivering more 
jobs.
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2.4.2 Programme 2: Research and Development

No# Performance 
indicator

Actual 
achievement 

2012/13

Planned 
target

2013/14

Actual 
achievement

2013/14

Deviation 
from planned 

target to  
actual 

achievement 
for 2013/14

Comments on 
deviations

13 Number of  mid-
term evaluation  
reports on NDA 
funded projects 
produced

47 72 82 10 Target exceeded. 
There were 
more NDA 
funded projects 
requiring mid-term 
evaluation than 
planned.

14 Number 
of  closeout  
evaluation  
reports on NDA 
funded projects 
produced

88 66 68 2 Target exceeded. 
There were 
more NDA 
funded projects 
requiring mid-term 
evaluation than 
planned.

15 Number  
performance 
monitoring  
reports on NDA 
funded projects 
produced

47 45 47 2 Target exceeded. 
More projects 
were visited 
for monitoring 
purposes than 
planned

16 Number of case 
studies on NDA 
programme areas 
produced

3 6 7 1 Target exceeded. 
There were 
more projects 
that provided 
interesting case 
studies than had 
been planned.

17 Number of 
good practice 
publications on 
NDA programme 
areas produced

4 6 6 0 Target achieved 

18 Number of 
research 
reports on NDA 
programme areas 
produced

4 3 4 1 Target exceeded. 
One research 
study was started 
in the previous 
financial year but 
completed in the 
year under review.



 28

No# Performance 
indicator

Actual 
achievement 

2012/13

Planned 
target

2013/14

Actual 
achievement

2013/14

Deviation 
from planned 

target to  
actual 

achievement 
for 2013/14

Comments on 
deviations

19 Number of 
position papers 
/ policy briefs on 
NDA programmes 
produced

5 5 6 1 Target 
exceeded due 
to the additional 
research report 
produced, NDA 
produced more 
than targeted 
policy briefs.

2.4.3 Programme 3: Capacity building

No# Performance 
indicator

Actual 
achievement 

2012/13

Planned 
target

2013/14

Actual 
achievement

2013/14

Deviation 
from planned 

target to 
actual  

achievement 
for 2013/14

Comments on 
deviations

20 Number of 
civil society 
organisations 
(CSOs) provided 
with capacity 
building 
interventions 
in CSO 
management and 
technical skills

223 239 2 059 1 820 Target exceeded 
due to funding 
NDA received 
from provincial 
Departments 
of Social 
Development to 
capacitate their 
funded NPOs 
which were not 
part of the original 
NDA target.

21 Number of 
beneficiaries from 
capacity building 
interventions.

3 831 1 174 4 384 3 210 Target exceeded. 
Due to funding 
NDA received 
from provincial 
Departments 
of Social 
Development to 
capacitate their 
funded NPOs 
which were not 
part of the original 
NDA target.
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No# Performance 
indicator

Actual 
achievement 

2012/13

Planned 
target

2013/14

Actual 
achievement

2013/14

Deviation 
from planned 

target to 
actual  

achievement 
for 2013/14

Comments on 
deviations

22 Number of 
NDA funded 
Early Childhood 
Development 
(ECD) 
practitioners 
enrolled in NQF 
level 4 Training

New indicator 206 236 30 Target exceeded. 
There were more 
ECD practitioners 
identified by 
provinces that 
needed to be 
enrolled in the 
programme than 
planned.

23 Percent (%) 
increase  
of CSOs 
demonstrating 
improved 
implementation

78% 80% 80% 0% Target achieved

2.4.4 Programme 4: Governance and administration

No# Performance 
indicator

Actual 
achievement 

2012/13

Planned 
target

2013/14

Actual 
achievement

2013/14

Deviation 
from planned 

target to  
actual 

achievement 
for 2013/14

Comments on 
deviations

24 Percent (%) 
of vacancy 
rate against 
approved 
organisational 
structure 
maintained

2.26% 5% 4.92% 0.8% Target exceeded. 
Key positions 
were filled within 
the recruitment 
timelines

25 Percent (%) 
of staff who 
achieved a 
performance 
rating of 3 and 
above

96.1% 95% 97.3% 2.36% Target exceeded 
due to employees 
undergoing 
training on 
performance 
management and 
the approved 
performance 
management 
policy fully 
implemented
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No# Performance 
indicator

Actual 
achievement 

2012/13

Planned 
target

2013/14

Actual 
achievement

2013/14

Deviation 
from planned 

target to  
actual 

achievement 
for 2013/14

Comments on 
deviations

26 Percent (%)  of 
positive rating  of 
staff perceptions 
achieved

62.5% 65% 66% 1% Target exceeded 
because 
dimensions found 
to be high priority 
in 2013/14 survey 
outcomes were 
addressed by 
the organisation. 
This resulted in 
positive ratings on 
the dimensions 
in the 2013/14 
climate survey. 
Improved 
deviation from the 
planned target 
therefore reported

27 Percent (%) of 
positive rating 
on NDA brand 
awareness 
achieved

0% 65% 60% (5%) Target not 
achieved due to 
few responses 
received from the 
selected sample

28 Unqualified 
report by 
Auditor-
General

Unqualified 
audit 

opinion

Unqualified 
audit opinion

Unqualified 
audit opinion

No deviation Target achieved

29 Number of Ad-
visory Centres 
pilot sites

New 
Indicator

27 28 1 Target exceeded, 
additional pilot 
sites were 
established to 
extend the NDA 
footprint 
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2.4.5  Project case studies and best practice

2.4.5.1 Tfutfukani Brick Making Cooperative

Background

Tfutfukani is a brick-making cooperative strategically placed at the heart of developing areas and 
nearby Nelspruit, the economic hub of the region. Tfutfukani Brick Making Cooperative falls under 
the Mbombela Municipality which is situated within the Lowveld sub-region of the Mpumalanga 
Province. Tfutfukani was started in 2005 by six members brought together by Mrs Mavuso after 
she was retrenched from a clothing factory. The cooperative was legally registered in 2005 but 
only started its operations in 2008 due to lack of land and startup capital.

Project methodology

The cooperative starts with mixing the river sand, building sand and cement to produce the bricks. 
A conveyor belt adds the mixture to a machine, which pours a measured amount of mixture into 
a form. The form is vibrated to remove bubbles, after which it is raised to reveal the wet bricks, 
spaced out on a pallet then they are carried to the brickyard for drying. The cooperative makes 
four types of bricks: hollow bricks used to build homes and walls, maxi bricks which are used 
mainly for RDP houses and stock brick and paving bricks used for paving on the roads. Currently 
Tfutfukani Brick Making Cooperative makes about 10 000 SABS-approved bricks daily.

Challenges

•	 Insufficient number of palettes to enable the cooperative to produce more numbers of bricks 
daily

•	 The parts for the brick making machines are very expensive and they are purchased in 
Gauteng which takes some time. The cooperative have experienced a breakdown of the 
machine and had to stop producing bricks for weeks while waiting for the parts to be replaced

•	 The cooperative has a delivery truck that is not in good conditions as it often breaks down 
and it costs a lot of unbudgeted monies for repairs

•	 The project beneficiaries struggle with transport from home to work.

Partnerships

The cooperative has established partnerships with:

•	 Build it to supply bricks on a monthly basis
•	 A school to supply bricks for the community school that is being built.
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Financial	and	non	financial	support

•	 In 2008 Tfutfukani approached the Mpumalanga Economic Growth Agency (Mega) for 
assistance and they provided a loan of R495 000 to the cooperative. The cooperative 
installed electricity and fencing, bought a container for storage of tools and materials, 
repaired the brick making machine, de-bushed the land and constructed a guard house.

•	 National Development Agency funded the cooperative a grant of R941 719 which was 
used to buy material and a truck. The NDA also ensured that members are capacitated in 
governance and financial management and controls. Ten members have already benefited 
from this training. 

•	 DELTA donated an industrial brick making machine to the value of R550 000.
•	 Mbombela Municipality provided land and have appointed the audit firm of Sekela Xabiso to 

prepare the cooperative’s books. 
•	 Small Enterprise Development Agency assisted the cooperative with the development of 

the business plan. 

Conclusion

The cooperative is doing very well and has a great potential for growth seeing the hard work that 
the members are putting in the cooperative and the quality of bricks they are producing. Tfutftukani 
is a good example of youth and women empowerment, as the majority of the beneficiaries are 
youth and women. 

Recommendations

The cooperative needs a forklift to pack bricks and load them in a truck as a wheel barrow is 
currently being used to move the bricks from one point to another when they have dried out. This 
is, however, time consuming and labour intensive. 

2.4.5.2 Thusanang Day Care Centre

Background

Thusanang Day Care Centre was established in 1989 by four women from the community of 
Mashemong in Hammanskraal. They were given a piece of land by the tribal authority under Chief 
Kekana to start the centre due to unsafe conditions that children were exposed to in Mashemong. 
Thusanang Day Care Centre is one of the 200 ECD centres in Hammanskraal. 

The centre was one of the ECD centres identified by the South African Congress of Early Childhood 
Development (SACECD) in 2010 to participate in the training and development of vegetable 
gardens at the ECD site. Thusanang Day Care Centre started with 80 children and to date the 
centre has enrolled 133 children and employs 12 staff members of whom six are teachers. 
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Methodology

Thusanang Day Care Centre has divided the children into four categories according to age groups. 
The age group categories are as follows:

•	 2-3 yrs – 10 children
•	 3-4 yrs – 44 children
•	 4–5 years – 48 children
•	 5–6 years – 28 children

Since the centre has only six teachers and 133 children, it uses the ratio of 1:20, meaning that 
each teacher teaches 20 children every day. The centre uses the food menu that was given to 
them by the Department of Health and Social Development; however the centre rotates the menu 
every two weeks. 

The school fee for the centre is R150 per month per child. The teachers earn a salary of R2 000 
per month, comprised of a stipend of R773 from Department of Social Development every month 
and R1 227 from school fees. The centre also hired five gardeners to grow vegetables.  Their 
stipends are paid by the National Development Agency.   

Challenges

•	 Insufficient space with regards to the classrooms and a small dining hall that children can 
use for eating and events. When the centre has events or graduation ceremonies, they 
have to rent a tent and chairs which is beyond the budget

•	 Many of the parents of needy children and orphans enrolled at the centre cannot afford to 
pay school fees. Teachers feel that they cannot send these children away or refuse to enrol 
them because their parents cannot pay the fees The Centre has experienced eight  break 
ins and theft due to lack of security of the premises

•	 Lack of funds to build more classes as the ratio of children is continuously increasing, so 
there is not enough space

•	 The community approaches the centre on a daily basis to enrol more children but due 
to limited space the centre cannot enrol more children, even though the certificate from 
Department of Health allows for 200 children

•	 The classrooms are very cold in winter and very hot in summer which makes it very difficult 
for teachers to teach 

•	 The food that is bought with the nutrition funds from DSD, which is received quarterly, is not 
enough to feed the children

•	 The centre uses pit toilets that are not safe for the children and do not give the children 
privacy.
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Partnerships

Thusanang Day Care Centre only has two funders that are assisting to improve the quality and 
standard of the centre. They are:

•	 Department of Social Development (DSD). The DSD pays the monthly stipend to all the 
teachers at Thusanang and quarterly nutrition funds for feeding the children on a daily basis

•	 The National Development Agency (NDA). The NDA is building the ablution structure for 
the centre, has purchased office equipment (computers and printers), and provided funds 
to put the ceiling and flooring of the classes. The agency is also paying the R1 200 monthly 
stipend to the volunteers who work on the centre’s vegetable garden and human resource 
staff.

Conclusion

The Thusanang Day Care Centre has enough space with regards to land to expand and increase 
the number of classes, although the main challenge is lack of funds. The vegetable garden 
also serves an important purpose in providing vegetables to the centre for feeding the children 
although it was observed that most of the vegetables are exposed to the sun and die as a result 
of too much direct sunlight.

Recommendations

•	 It is recommended that the centre uses nets to cover its vegetables and also installs 
sprinklers as water is being fetched with water cans. Some of the vegetables do not develop 
properly because there is only little water put in them

•	 A sand play area should be built for the centre as there is only one small container filled with 
sand for all the children to play in. This breaks often and has to be replaced at a cost 

•	 The centre should be assisted to build more partnerships with other institutions that can 
assist or supply with blankets, mattresses and heaters.

2.4.5.3 Best practice

Ikhwezi Vegetable & Poultry Farming Cooperative

Background

The Ikhwezi Vegetable and Poultry Farming Cooperative was formed in 1996 by five women 
and operated informally until members decided to contribute R50 per month each to start the 
cooperative, which was registered in 2010. The cooperative is situated in Skhwahlane village in 
ward 16 of the Nkomazi local municipality in the Eastern part of Ehlanzeni District municipality in 
Mpumalanga. The area forms part of the war on poverty campaign. The project has been granted 
a right to occupy a 17 hectares of land by the Matsamo Tribal Authority. The village is part of 
Nkomazi region which is known for its rich agricultural soil and vast area of land.  
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The cooperative approached the National Development Agency (NDA) for grants to set up a cold 
storage room, pack house, administration office, irrigation pipes for a water pump engine, delivery 
vehicle and office equipment. The cooperative has a good record of achievement in vegetable 
production since its inception. 

Project implementation structure

All project beneficiaries are working on the fields and are involved in the planting, maintaining and 
harvesting the crops. The cooperative is using direct soil production farming to grow its crops. The 
cooperative makes its own organic fertiliser to enhance the quality of the soil. The farm is located 
close to the Komati River. There is a water pump on the premises that draws water from the river 
for irrigation of the crops and general water supply to the farm. The water drawn into the farm is 
also safe for human consumption. 

The crop rotation that is used by the cooperative is designed in such a way that the harvesting 
of crops is continual. The cooperative is planting a mix of crops that are harvested at various 
seasons of the year. This system helps them to produce crops for sale throughout the year.

The Ikhwezi produces different kinds of vegetables including butternut, cabbage, onions, potatoes, 
chillies, green beans, green peppers, tomatoes, brinjal, okra, sugar beans, marrows, mielies and 
beetroot. 

Challenges

Through its implementation phase, the Ikhwezi Cooperative encountered the following challenges:

	y It was difficult for the cooperative to combat the crop diseases affecting the crops. The 
project overcame this challenge with assistance and continuous advice on pest control and 
spraying programmes

	y Heavy rain destroys the crops and also limits the Cooperative in planting or harvesting due 
to muddy fields

	y The project beneficiaries have to pack and sort the vegetables without using the machine 
purchased for the project due to lack of knowledge on how to operate such machine. This 
is time consuming and requires lots of labour

	y Limited skills in packaging the products to meet the packaging standards of the markets
	y Cold rooms have been delivered and installed but are not yet utilised by the cooperative to 

store produce due to incomplete installation 

Achievements

•	 In 2001 the project received funding  of R50 000 from the Department of Social Development, 
which was used to acquire a three piston engine and irrigation pipes

•	 In 2002 the project won the Female Farmer competition and was awarded R10 000 from the 
provincial competition and R30 000 for the national competition

•	 In 2003 the project was awarded a trophy by the National Market for the Best Producer for 
National Market
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•	 In 2006 the project received a grant of R60 000 which was used to erect a perimeter fence 
In 2013 the project won the best cooperative in South Africa on wide range vegetable 
production from Productivity SA

•	 The cooperative has created 50 jobs, of which 32 are permanent and 18 are temporary
•	 The cooperative has secured a supply arrangement of some of the vegetables produced 

with Woolworths, Pick n Pay and SPAR supermarkets.
•	 The cooperative also secured a contract with the Department of Education to supply schools 

with oranges, cabbages, onions, tomatoes and butternut for the school nutrition programme
•	 Profits of the cooperative have increased by 50% since 2012
•	 Technical skills have been transferred to workers and all workers in the cooperative are able 

to plant, manage and harvest crops without strict supervision.

Financial	and	non	financial	support

•	 Department of Social Development (DSD) funded the purchase of a Lister diesel for the 
engine to pump water to irrigate  crops

•	 National Development Agency (NDA) provided grants to install a drip irrigation system in 
the farm, build a vegetable pack house, install three cool rooms for the vegetables, build an 
office block and buy a vehicle to deliver vegetables from the farm to the market

•	 The Department of Trade and Industry (DTI) funded the drip system
•	 Small Enterprise Development Agency (SEDA) developed spraying and planting 

programmes for the project, and appointed a service provider to assist the cooperative with 
the packaging of the vegetables that are ready for the market. 

    
Conclusion

Ikhwezi Cooperative is a good example of job creation, youth empowerment and food security 
project as it has created 50 jobs, employed youth and supplies vegetables to the communities, 
schools and markets. 

Recommendations

Marketing and packaging of products plays an important role in adding value to products. There 
is a need for quality management training on packaging of vegetables as well as training on how 
to operate the sorting and packaging machine that has been purchased for the cooperative.

The NDA Mpumalanga provincial office has entered into an agreement with the Belgium Ex-
Change to mentor all NDA funded projects in both agriculture and Income generation. It is 
recommended that the agreement of this kind be expanded to other provinces to enable other 
projects to benefit from this mentorship programme.
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2.5 Strategy to overcome areas of underperformance

The NDA has developed a number of key strategies to overcome the identified underperformance 
areas.

Strategic Workforce Plan

In responding to the demand for delivering Strategic Plan and Annual Performance Plan targets, 
the NDA developed the Strategic Workforce Plan to support the achievement of the NDA strategic 
goals by ensuring adequate supply of human capital in terms of both numbers and skills. The plan 
is aimed at resolving gaps that may exist due to the capacity required to achieve the strategic 
objectives.

2.6 Changes to planned targets and performance indicator

During the year under review, management recommended that the Minister of Department of 
Social Development approve the adjustment of targets as set in the 2013/14 Annual Performance 
Plan as follows:

Performance Indicator 2013/14 annual target Proposal

Percentage (%) completion of design of an 
integrated ICT

100% Defer to next financial 
year

Percentage (%) completion of development of an 
integrated ICT system

30% Defer to next financial 
year

Ratio of mandate to admin cost achieved 57:43 55:45
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Part C 
Report on corporate governance

The NDA code of conduct is linked to the NDA values 
and ethics guiding employees on what is expected of 
them from an ethical point of view. ”“

Corporate
Governance

Communities,  
authorities and board

Risk management

Compliance, fraud and 
corruption

Conflict of interest 
and code of conduct

Health, safety and 
environment

Company secretary and social 
responsibility and environment

Audit committee 
report
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The Board of the NDA is responsible for upholding the application of corporate governance 
principles and adherence to the governance prescripts. The Board takes accountability for the 
performance of the NDA.  The current NDA Board was appointed for a period of three years in 
November 2010. The Board term was extended from November 2013 to a further period limited to 
the date of appointment of a new Board. The annual report for this financial year will be the fourth 
performance report of the NDA under the leadership and guidance of the current Board.

3.1 Parliamentary Portfolio Committee   

The Portfolio Committee exercises oversight over the service delivery performance of public 
entities and, as such, reviews the non-financial information contained in the annual reports of 
public entities and is concerned with service delivery and enhancing economic growth. During 
the year under review, there were two meetings held with the Parliamentary Portfolio Committee 
on Social Development for presentation of the NDA Strategic Plan and the Annual Report. The 
Committee noted progress on implementation of the NDA mandate and its impact on its key 
stakeholders, the civil society organisations.

3.2 Executive authority

In terms of the Public Finance Management Act, 1999 (Act No 1 of 1999) (PFMA), the Board is 
the Accounting Authority of the NDA. The Accounting Authority reports to the Minister of Social 
Development, being the Executive Authority. The accountability and performance relationship 
between the Board and the Minister is facilitated through a Shareholder’s Agreement, implemented 
through submission of Quarterly Performance Reports and the Annual Report. All four quarterly 
performance reports were submitted to the Minister at the end of each quarter. A dashboard 
report which outlines progress against financial management, governance and compliance with 
laws and regulations was submitted to the Minister of Social Development to note progress by 
the NDA in addressing these issues. Both the Auditor-General and the Minister acknowledged a 
satisfactory improvement by the NDA in addressing these areas of performance.

3.3 The Board

The Board is the Accounting Authority (as defined in the PFMA) and, as such, the members have 
a collective responsibility to meet fiduciary duties outlined in the PFMA, Treasury Regulations, 
Companies Act and the principles of the King III Code of Governance. The constitution and 
composition of the Board are governed by the National Development Agency Act (Act No 108 of 
1998, as amended). The current Board composition is in compliance with the requirements of the 
NDA Act.  There are 11 Board members appointed.

Report on corporate 

governance
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The role of the Board is as follows:
In addition, to the provisions on Board accountability within the above governance prescripts and 
as recorded in the Board Charter, the roles and responsibilities of the Board are as follows:

•	 General oversight of all aspects of the business
•	 Determining the NDA’s purpose, policies and values, and monitoring compliance with them
•	 Approving the NDA’s strategy and monitoring its implementation
•	 Approving the accounting policy, financial and other controls, and any changes to them
•	 Approving the budget and forecasts
•	 Approving management initiatives, resource allocations, capital investments and divestments 

subject to limitations as defined in the approved Delegations of Authority
•	 Ensuring that risk management systems and procedures are in place to protect the NDA’s 

assets and reputation
•	 Recommendations to the Minister of Social Development for the appointment and removal 

of the Chief Executive Officer
•	 Approving the organisational structure, human resource plans, recruitment, development 

and succession of executive management, the assignment of executive management 
responsibilities, and the staff compensation strategy 

•	 Approving the audit fee
•	 Any matter which would have a material effect on the entity’s financial position, liabilities, 

future strategy or reputation
•	 Delegation of the Board’s powers
•	 Ensuring that the NDA complies with all relevant laws, regulations, and codes of best 

business practice
•	 Reviewing financial and operating results
•	 Approving the annual report
•	 Providing counsel to the CEO and his/her team on all critical matters
•	 Reporting annually to the Minister of Social Development on all aspects of the NDA’s 

performance
•	 Evaluating the performance of the Board and of individual Board members
•	 Making recommendations to the Minister regarding:

 » Remuneration of Board members
 » Changes to the NDA Act and the Agency Agreement

Board charter

A Board charter defines the NDA Board’s oversight responsibilities. This is to be read in conjunction 
with the NDA Act, the PFMA, Treasury Regulations and the Board sub-committees’ terms of 
reference. The Board also takes note of the Shareholder’s Agreement between the organisation 
and the Minister of Social Development to monitor the performance of the NDA.
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Composition of the Board

The Board has 11 external members. The CEO is an ex-officio member of the Board. The CEO 
and the CFO are standing invitees to Board meetings. The Board is appointed by the Minister of 
Social Development.

NDA Board

Mr Malose Kekana
NDA Chairman

• Former Chief Executive Officer of Umsobomvu Youth Fund
• Currently also serves as Chairman of Ithala Bank
• B.Comm, University of the Witwatersrand
• Executive Leadership Development Programmes, US Educational Institutions

Ms Thabi Shange
NDA Deputy Chairperson

• Chief Executive Officer of Ubuqotho Integrity Institute (Pty) Ltd
• MBA (Finance and Marketing) University of Exeter Business School, United 

Kingdom
• BA Honours  (Development Studies) University of the Witwatersrand
• BA (Geography & History) National University of Lesotho
• BA in Education, National University of Lesotho
• Concurrent certificate in Education, National University of Lesotho
• Certificate in Governance IoDSA, Johannesburg

Mr Mbana Peter Thabethe

• Free State Head of Department (HOD) Agriculture and Rural Development
• Masters in Development Communication, University of Pretoria
• B Agric and B Agric Honours, Fort Hare University

Ms Nokuzola Gladys Tolashe

• Secretary General: ANC Women’s League
• Member of the Standing Committees on Education, Sport, Arts and Culture, 

Youth, Gender and the Disabled
• Former Chairperson of Portfolio Committee on Roads and Transport
• Member of the ANC National Executive Committee
• Member of the ANC National Working Committee
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Ms Suraya Bibi Khan

• Founding Member of the South African Women in Dialogue (SAWID)
• National Steering Committee Member: Progressive Women’s Movement of 

South Africa

Reverend Mcebisi Osman Xundu

• Certificate in Theology, St Beds College, Umtata
• Diploma in Development Studies, Institute of Social Studies, The Hague, 

Netherlands
• Honorary Doctorate of Divinity, Interdenominational Theological Seminary, 

Atlanta, USA
• Currently serves as President of the National Welfare Leaders Council

Mr Andrew Madella

• Currently completing Masters Degree in Public Administration, University of 
Stellenbosch

• BA Honours in Public Administration and B Philosophy, University of 
Stellenbosch

• Certificate in Construction Management, Cape Peninsula University of 
Technology

• Higher Diploma in Social Work, University of the Western Cape
• Secretary-General for the Disabled People South Africa

Ms Malekgoloane Malapane

• MBA, University of Maryland, USA
• Bachelor of Accountancy, George Washington University, USA
• Accounts Clerk National Certificate, Kenya Polytechnic, Nairobi, Kenya 
• Current Chief Financial Officer, Department of Science and  Technology
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Mr Zolile Ngcakani

• Master of Science: Environmental Health Engineering, University of Nairobi, 
Kenya

• Master of Science: Food and Biochemical Engineering, University of Western 
Ontario, Canada

• Diploma in Chemical Engineering, St Petersburg Institute of Chemical 
Technology, Russia

• Currently serves as a Commissioner in the National Defence Force Service 
Commission

Ms Mandisa Monakali

•	 Diplomas in Development Studies and Gender Studies, University of Cape 
Town

• Certificate in Adult Education, University of Cape Town
• Certificate in Gender and Development, The Hague, Netherlands
• Currently serves as an Executive Director of Ilitha Labantu

Ms Rowena Lozizwe Mdhlalose

• Programme in Provincial Government in Transition, University of the 
Witwatersrand

• Currently serves as Director at the Ministry of Defence

Record of attendance of Board Meetings

Board members 12.04.13 29.04.13 31.05.13 26.06.13 31.07.13 30.08.13 20.09.13 02.10.13

Mr Malose Kekana Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y

Ms Thabi Shange Y - Y Y Y Y Y Y

Ms Bibi Khan Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y

Mr Andrew Madella Y Y - Y Y - - Y

Ms Malekgoloane 
Malapane

- - Y - Y - Y Y

Ms Lozizwe 
Mdhlalose

Y Y - - Y - Y -

Ms Mandisa Monakali Y - - Y - - - -

Mr Zolile Ngcakani Y Y Y - Y Y Y -

Mr Peter Thabethe - - Y - - - - Y

Ms Nokuzola Tolashe - - - - - - - Y

Rev Mcebisi Xundu Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
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Record of Attendance of Board Meetings (continued)

Board Members 30.10.13 31.10.13 05.12.13 22.01.14 30.01.14 28.03.14 Total

Mr Malose Kekana Y Y Y Y Y Y 14

Ms Thabi Shange - - Y Y - Y 10

Ms Bibi Khan - Y Y - Y Y 12

Mr Andrew Madella Y Y Y - - - 8

Ms Malekgoloane Malapane - - - Y Y Y 7

Ms Lozizwe Mdhlalose - Y - Y Y Y 8

Ms Mandisa Monakali - - - - - - 2

Mr Zolile Ngcakani Y Y Y Y Y Y 12

Mr Peter Thabethe - - Y - - - 3

Ms Nokuzola Tolashe - - Y - - - 2

Rev Mcebisi Xundu Y Y Y Y Y Y 14

Board Committees

The Board has three committees, namely Audit and Risk, Human Resource and Remuneration, 
and Projects, Research and Development. 

Committee No of  
meetings 

held

No of  
members

Name of members

Audit and Risk 8 5 •	 Ms Thabi Shange (Chairperson)
•	 Ms Bibi Khan
•	 Ms Malekgoloane Malapane
•	 *Mr Vishnu Naicker
•	 Mr Zolile Ngcakani

Human Resource and 
Remuneration

7 5 •	 Ms Mandisa Monakali (Chairperson)
•	 Mr Andrew Madella
•	 Rev Mcebisi Xundu
•	 Ms Lozizwe Mdhlalose
•	 Ms Nokuzola Tolashe

Projects, Research and 
Development

5 6 •	 Mr Zolile Ngcakani (Chairperson)
•	 Mr Peter Thabethe
•	 Ms Bibi Khan
•	 Mr Andrew Madella
•	 Ms Lozizwe Mdhlalose
•	 Rev Mcebisi Xundu

*Resigned on 07 November 2013
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Record of attendance of human resources and remuneration committee meetings

Board members 23.05.13 24.05.13 20.07.13 21.07.13 26.07.13 17.09.13 22.10.13 Total

Ms Mandisa Monakali Y Y Y Y Y Y Y 7

Mr Andrew Madella Y Y Y Y Y Y Y 7

Ms Lozizwe 

Mdhlalose

- - - - - - - 0

Ms Nokuzola Tolashe - - - - - Y - 1

Rev Mcebisi Xundu Y - Y Y Y Y Y 6

Record of attendance of projects, research and development committee meetings

Board members 16.05.13 22.07.13 26.09.13 17.10.13 14.03.14 Total

Mr Zolile Ngcakani Y Y Y Y Y 5

Ms Bibi Khan Y Y Y Y Y 5

Mr Andrew Madella Y Y - Y - 3

Ms Lozizwe Mdhlalose Y - Y - Y 3

Mr Peter Thabethe - - - - - 0

Rev Mcebisi Xundu Y - Y Y Y 4

Record of attendance of audit and risk committee meetings

Board  
members

18.04.13 26.04.13 22.05.13 23.07.13 21.10.13 25.10.13 21.01.14 24.03.14 Total

Ms Thabi 
Shange

Y Y - Y Y Y Y Y 7

Ms Bibi Khan Y Y Y - - Y - Y 5

Ms Malekgo-
loane Malap-
ane

Y - - - Y Y Y Y 5

*Mr Vishnu 
Naicker

Y Y Y Y Y - * 5

Mr Zolile Ng-
cakani

Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y 8

*Resigned on 07 November 2013

Record of attendance of Board ad-hoc committee meetings

Board members 08.10.13 14.10.13 28.10.13 06.11.13 07.01.14 Total

Mr Zolile Ngcakani Y Y Y Y Y 5

Ms Bibi Khan Y Y Y Y Y 5

Ms Malekgoloane Malapane Y Y Y Y Y 5
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Remuneration of Board members

The remuneration of Board members is aligned to the National Treasury tariffs on board and 
committee fees. The Board fee includes a one day preparation fee for ordinary Board members 
and two days preparation fee for the Chairperson. Three members of the Board representing and 
employed by the State are not remunerated.  However, they are eligible for subsistence and travel 
claims.  For the period January to March 2014, Ms Malapane was remunerated as she was no 
longer in the employ of the State and the organisation was not yet in receipt of the new nominee 
for the State.

Name Remuneration 
(net) ‘R’

Other allowance 
‘R’

Other  
re-imbursements

Total 
‘R’

Mr M Kekana  217 000 - -  217 000
Ms T Shange  123 000 - -  123 000
Ms B Khan  147 500 -  -  147 500
Ms A Madella   91 000 - -   91 000
Ms M Malapane  27 500 -  -  27 500
Ms L Mdhlalose - - - -
Ms M Monakali   48 500 - -   48 500
Mr Z Ngcakani  167 500 -  -  167 500
Mr P Thabethe - - - -
Ms N Tolashe   27 500 - -   27 500
Rev M Xundu  127 500 - -  127 500
Mr V Naicker   31 000 - -  31 000
Total 1 008 000 - 23 666 1 008 000

3.4 Risk management

The National Development Agency implements an enterprise wide risk management through 
the Legal and Risk Unit, wherein participatory risk assessment workshops are undertaken with 
provincial and national offices. The process of identifying, scoring and assessing risks is informed 
by an approved Risk Management Framework and Policy.

Out of these assessments, a risk register is compiled, incorporating a risk strategy of identified 
risks, rating, mitigating controls and risk owners.  In addition, the ten top risks of the organisation 
are identified, monitored and reported quarterly. Further, risk management is strengthened 
through implementation of an approved Fraud Prevention Plan, Whistle Blowing Policy, Disaster 
Recovery Plan and Fraud Hotline.  During the year under review, two policies were added to the 
Risk Management toolkit, namely: Risk Tolerance Framework and the Risk Management Policy 
and Framework.

Since the internal audit coverage plan is risk centric, the risk register is submitted to internal audit 
in order to inform their coverage plan.  All the reports from the Fraud Hotline are also submitted 
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to internal audit for investigation and follow up.  A follow up on both regulatory and internal audit 
findings is also undertaken as part of the audit turnaround strategy to assess corrective action on 
the findings.  This is reported on and submitted to EXCO, Audit and Risk Committee, the Board 
and AGSA.

3.5 Compliance with laws and regulations

The NDA has a compliance checklist that responds to the provisions of the PFMA, Treasury 
Regulations and all other relevant legislation.

3.6 Fraud and corruption

The NDA has an approved Fraud Prevention Plan accessible to its internal stakeholders. This 
plan outlines mechanisms and procedures to be followed in detecting, reporting and mitigating 
against fraud. The Legal and Risk Unit is the custodian of the Fraud Prevention Plan. The plan is 
complimented by an approved Whistle Blowing Policy that facilitates protected disclosures and 
guarantees the confidentiality of whistle blowers. Further, the NDA has a Fraud Hotline to which 
all fraudulent issues or events are reported. Internal Audit is tasked to investigate and follow up 
on reported cases.

3.7	 Conflict	of	interest

Declarations of interest forms are distributed annually to Board Members and NDA staff to facilitate 
recording of any interest that might impact on the NDA. Further, in every management meeting 
or Board and Committee meetings a declaration of interest form on agenda items is completed 
and signed. Where there is an interest declared, the member is requested to recluse him/herself 
when the item is discussed.

3.8 Code of Conduct

The NDA Code of Conduct was developed and approved by the Board during the reporting 
period. The purpose of the code is to promote exemplary conduct by assisting both employer 
and employees to know and understand the minimum standards of conduct and the expected 
behaviour required as employees of the NDA. This code is directly linked to the NDA Values and 
Ethics which act as guidelines to employees on what is expected of them from an ethical point of 
view, both in their individual conduct and in their relationships with others. The policy has been 
workshopped and distributed to all staff members to ensure that they are aware of the salient 
clauses in the policy and enable them to conform their conduct to the NDA’s Values.

3.9 Health, safety and environmental issues

To deliver on the Occupational Health and Safety (OHS) Policy objective, the NDA has 12 trained 
occupational health and safety representatives nationally. These representatives have conducted 
an OHS assessment and recommendations are currently being implemented to minimise 
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and prevent work related injuries on duty. Ongoing awareness campaigns on OHS policy and 
procedure have been instituted to prevent OHS-related incidents and fatalities. The results of 
these interventions have been satisfactory as no major OHS-related incidents and fatalities were 
reported.

3.10 Company Secretary

The Company Secretary plays two pivotal roles in providing secretarial and advisory services to the 
Board and its Committees.  The Company Secretary is also a liaison official between management 
and the Board and between the Board and shareholders, giving effect to the governance protocol. 
The Company Secretary is a custodian of the register of Board and Committee decisions, gift 
register and policy register.

3.11 Social responsibility

During the year under review the NDA, through its ECD Campaign, established a portal through 
which staff members, Board members and stakeholders made pledges to needy identified ECDs 
on the database.

Mr Malose Kekana
Chairman of the Board
National Development Agency
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3.12 Audit committee report

Purpose of the audit and risk committee

The function of the audit and risk committee of the National Development Agency is to assist the 
agency in discharging its duties relating to the safeguarding of assets, the operation of adequate 
systems, control processes and the preparation of financial reports and statements.

These tasks are conducted in line with all applicable legal requirements and accounting standards 
as prescribed in the Public Finance Management Act (Act No 1 of 1999 as amended)  (PFMA). The 
operation of the committee is governed by the audit and risk committee charter which provides 
clear guidelines with regards to membership, authority and responsibilities. The members of the 
audit and risk committee were:

	 Ms T Shange (Chairperson)
	 Ms M Malapane
	 Ms B Khan
	 Mr Z Ngcakani
	 Mr V Naicker (Resigned on 7 November 2013)

The Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Internal Auditor and the manager 
Legal and Risk and the Auditor-General have a standing invitation to attend the audit committee 
meetings. These meetings were well attended by committee members. The NDA Company 
Secretary acts as the secretariat to the committee.

Audit and risk committee responsibility

The committee reports that it has complied with its responsibilities arising from the prevailing 
Treasury Regulations and the PFMA. The committee also reports that it has adopted appropriate 
formal terms of reference as its charter, has regulated its affairs in compliance with this charter 
and has discharged all its responsibilities as contained therein.

Evaluation of internal controls

The committee directs, monitors and evaluates the activities of the internal audit function. Through 
the internal audit function, the committee is able to report on the effectiveness of the internal 
control systems and to assess whether the internal audit function is fulfilling its roles effectively 
and efficiently.

In the conduct of its duties, the committee has, inter alia, reviewed the following:

	 The effectiveness of the internal control systems
	 The operational risk areas covered in the scope of internal and external audits
	 The adequacy, reliability and accuracy of financial information provided to management and 

other users of such information
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	 Any accounting and auditing concerns identified as a result of internal and external audits
	 Compliance with legal, accounting and regulatory frameworks
	 The activities of the internal audit function, including its annual work programme, co-

ordination with external auditors, the reports of significant investigations and the response 
of management to specific recommendations

	 Where relevant, the independence and objectivity of external auditors.

The system of internal control applied by the agency over financial risk management is effective, 
efficient and transparent.  In line with the PFMA and the King III Report on Corporate Governance 
requirements, internal audit provides the committee and management with assurance that the 
internal controls are appropriate and effective.

This is achieved by means of the risk management process, as well as the identification of 
corrective actions and suggested enhancements to the controls and processes, reports of the 
internal auditors, the audit report on the Annual Financial Statements and the management report 
of the Auditor-General.

Under the guidance of the committee, internal audit conducted adequacy and effectiveness 
reviews of controls as per an approved plan.  The committee notes the commitment and progress 
made in improving the systems of internal control around the identified areas and that this will 
continue to form an integral part of Audit and Risk Committee agenda in the forthcoming fiscal 
year. Management has initiated the audit turnaround strategy that monitors progress around audit 
findings.

Evaluation of the Annual Report

The committee has:

	 Reviewed and discussed with the Auditor-General the audited Annual Financial Statements 
included in the Annual Report

	 Reviewed the Auditor-General’s management report and management’s responses
	 Reviewed the accounting policies and practices
	 Evaluated the audited Annual Financial Statements included in the Annual Report and, 

based on the information provided to the committee, considers that the said statements 
comply in all material respects with the requirements of the Treasury Regulations, the PFMA 
requirements as well as South African Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting 
Practices (SA Standards of GRAP) and

	 Reviewed the NDA’s report on performance information.
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The monitoring of the agency’s performance is a key function of management, executive 
management and the agency. The committee has no direct line responsibility for the agency’s 
performance measurement. However, the committee has ensured, principally through the 
internal audit function, that the systems of performance measurement and reporting, as well as 
the systems of internal control that underpin the performance management framework of the 
agency, remain robust and are addressed routinely in the audit plans. The committee confirms 
that during the year under review, a number of weaknesses around performance measurement 
were identified and management was directed to ensure that an appropriate corrective action 
plan is implemented in the 2013/14 financial year.

The committee has accepted the responsibility of ensuring adequate reporting on performance 
information and the policies and that the procedures are of a standard acceptable to the agency. 
The committee’s mandate and charter has been altered to acknowledge this responsibility. The 
committee has taken note of the performance information report, which compares the actual 
performance of the organisation against the approved business plan for the financial year, the 
strategic objectives, key performance indicators and targets set.

Conclusion

The committee has once again taken note of the concerns of the Auditor-General and accepts 
that there is further room for improvement in the accounting function and elements of the internal 
control environment.  As in previous years the committee will ensure that the internal audit plan 
addresses these issues and will monitor the implementation of the recommendations of the 
Auditor-General’s report.

I would like to thank all members of the committee for their contribution and the professional way 
in which meetings were conducted.  The committee wishes to express its sincere appreciation for 
the commitment and progress made this year to the Board, CEO and staff of the NDA.

We are pleased to present our report for the financial year ended 31 March 2014.

Ms Thabi Shange
Chairperson of the audit committee
National Development Agency



 52 52

Part D 
Human resource management

The human resource management function has assumed 
multiple roles in creating, delivering and sustaining a 
value proposition for the organisation’s strategic goals 
and objectives. ”

“
Human resource 

management

Oversight statistics

Personnel costs

Personnel rewards

Employment, vacancies 
and changes
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Human resource
management

The human resource management function has assumed multiple roles in creating, delivering 
and sustaining a value proposition for the organisation’s strategic goals and objectives. These 
roles include the provision of human resources management and administration; human resource 
planning and reporting, human resources development;  performance improvement, employee 
wellbeing and employee relations.

To achieve the NDA strategic goals and objectives, the human resources directorate adopted a 
human capital management strategic framework based on five core pillars:

•	Workforce alignment and employee engagement
•	Employee management and development
•	Constructive workplace relationship management
•	Employee health and well-being
•	Employee disengagement.

4.1 Human resources oversight statistics

The table below summarises the audited expenditure and provides an indication of personnel 
cost per programme and salary band.

Personnel cost by programme

Programme Total expenditure 
for the entity 

(R’000)

Personnel 
expenditure 

(R’000)

Personnel 
expenditure 

as a % of 
total  

expenditure

No of 
employees

Average 
personnel 

cost per 
employee 

(R’000)
Programme 1: 
Development 
Management

112 777 32 854 29.1 63 521

Programme 2: 
Research and 
Development

5 138 2 136 41.5 6 356

Programme 3: 
Capacity Building

37 058 1 895 5.1 4 473

Programme 4: 
Administration and 
Governance

86 227 23 917 27.7 49 488

Total 241 200 60 802 22 122 1 838
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Personnel cost by salary band

Level Personnel  
expenditure 

(R’000)

% of personnel 
expenditure to 
total personnel 

cost

No of
employees

Average 
personnel cost 

per employee 
(R’000)

Top management 10 864 17.8 7 1 552

Senior  
management

17 209 28.4 29 593

Professional  
qualified

20 723 34.1 43 482

Skilled 7 596 12.5 28 271

Semi-skilled 520 0.8 4 130

Unskilled 2 066 3.4 11 188

Other* (internships) 1 824 3 22 83

Total 60 802  100 144 498

Performance reward 

The NDA utilises a three-tier performance management system to monitor and evaluate its 
organisational and employee performance. The system is split into three distinctive levels: the 
organisational scorecard (APP) measures EXCO team performance, the divisional scorecards 
measures senior management team performance, and the performance management contract 
and agreements measure employee’s performance. The system includes payment of performance 
bonuses as part of recognising and enhancing a high performing culture in the organisation. It is 
designed to assist the NDA to achieve its goals and objectives, by using performance measures 
that identify and reward quality and excellent work. 

The table below represents the performance rewards per salary band:

Level Performance rewards 
(R’000)

Personnel expenditure 
(R’000)

% of performance 
rewards to total 
personnel cost 

Top management 457 10 864 4.2

Senior management 721 17 209 4.2

Professional qualified 806 20 723 3.8

Skilled 328                            7 596 4.3

Semi-skilled 25                              520 4.8

Unskilled 97 3 890 2.5

Total 2 433 60 802 4
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Training costs

The NDA is committed to creating an environment that promotes continuous learning and 
development to enhance employee’s skills and competencies to enable them to reach their full 
potential and contribute to the implementation of strategy. A total of R836 346.56 was spent on 
learning and development interventions in 2013/14.

Directorate Personnel 
expenditure 

(R’000)

Training  
expenditure

(R’000)

Training 
expenditure as a 

% of personnel 
cost

No. of  
employees 

trained

Average 
training  cost 
per employee 

‘R’
CEO’s Office 2 750 103.7 12.3 4 25 181

Development 
Management 11 199 276 0 33 30 9 201
Research and  
Development 2 526 29 2 3.5 5 5 842
Marketing and 
Communications 2 572 130 79 15.6 5 26 138
Internal Audit 3 641 43 6 5.21 6 7 269

Human Resources 3 554 184 9 22.10 6 30 812

Finance & IT 3 717 69 2 8.26 9 7 684

Total 29 959 836 3 99.96 65 106 127

A total of 65 employees attended short courses, seminars that were facilitated by reputable and 
accredited training providers. 12 bursaries/study assistance grants were awarded to employees 
based on three categories i.e. statutory, strategic and mandatory. A provision was also made for 
six employees’ professional affiliations with professional bodies to ensure that they keep abreast 
with the latest trends in their respective career fields.

Employment and vacancies

The NDA will continue to work towards maintaining the vacancy rate of 5% through filing critical 
vacancies while achieving employment equity targets. The current interim Board approved a 
structure that has 132 positions. However, recruitment of certain positions such as ECD, Food 
Security and Capacity Building specialists as well as Business analyst was put on hold due to 
budgetary constraints. The table below summarises the NDA employment and vacancies report.
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Programme 2012/13 
Number of 
employees

2013/14 
Approved 

posts

2013/14 
Number of 
employees

2013/14 
Vacancies

% of  
vacancies

Programme 1: Development 
management

62 63 60 3 4.8

Programme 2: Research and 
development

6 6 6 0 0

Programme 3: Capacity Building 4 4 4 0 0
Programme 4: Administration and 
governance

43 49 46 3 6.1

Total 115 122 116 6 4.9

Levels 2012/13 
Number of 
employees

2013/14 
Approved 

posts

2013/14 
Number of 
employees

2013/14 
Vacancies

% of  
vacancies

Top management 9 7 6 1 14.3
Senior management 23 29 25 4 13.8
Professional qualified 43 43 42 1 2.3
Skilled 29 28 28 0 0
Semi-skilled 3 4 4 0 0
Unskilled 11 11 11 0 0
Total 118 122 116 6 4.9

The NDA is operating at 95.1% occupancy rate against the approved staff establishment with a 
vacancy rate of 4.9%. However, where NDA had vacant senior management positions, internal 
arrangements were made through the appointment of internal staff members on acting and 
secondments contracts. Eight Capacity Building officers were appointed in five provincial offices 
(Limpopo, Eastern Cape, KwaZulu-Natal, North West and Free State) to implement the NPO 
Capacity Building programme through partnerships with the Department of Social Development.

Employment changes

The table below represents employment changes for the period under review.

Levels Employment as 
at 1 April 2013

Appointments Terminations Employment 
as at 31 March 

2014

Top management 9 0 1 8

Senior management 23 4 2 25

Professional qualified 43 7 6 44

Skilled 29 4 0 33

Semi-skilled 3 1 0 4

Unskilled 11 0 0 11

Total 118 15 9 125
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Reasons for staff leaving

The table below outlines the attrition trends in relation to the number of staff that has left the 
organisation during the 2013/14 financial year. Quarterly statistics are reported, and the annual 
turnover rate is an average of the four quarters.

Reason Number % of total no. of staff 

leaving

Death 1 6.7

Resignation 8 53.3

Dismissal - 0

Retirement - 0

Ill health - 0

Expiry of contract 5 33.3

Other 1 6.7

Total 15 100

As at 31 March 2014, a staff turnover of 4.92% was been recorded. The biggest reasons for staff 
leaving were employee resignations and expiry of contracts. Overall, 15 employees left the NDA 
in 2013/14, due to career and personal growth, and most of these positions have subsequently 
been filled.

Labour relations: misconduct and disciplinary action

Nature of disciplinary action Number

Verbal warning 1

Written warning 2

Final written warning -

Dismissal -

Total 3

Three misconduct and disciplinary cases were reported. Warnings issued were mostly related to 
non-compliance with NDA policies and procedures, and/or dereliction of duty.

Equity target and employment equity status

The tables and graphs below are based on the formats prescribed by the Employment Equity 
Act, (Act No 55 of 1998) and the Department of Labour. The NDA Employment Equity is profiled 
according to gender, disability, race, salary grade and by occupational categories. The numbers 
reflected in the tables below will not necessarily correlate with the number of employees as at 31 
March 2014, since it is a requirement of employment equity reporting that any staff member, who 
has been in the employ of NDA, even if it was for a period less than a month, should be reported 
on.
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Levels Females

African Coloured Indian White

Current Target Current Target Current Target Current Target
Top management 2 1 0 1 1 1 0 0

Senior management 11 13 0 1 0 1 0 1

Professional qualified 28 28 1 1 0 0 0 1

Skilled 25 27 2 0 0 0 0 1

Semi-skilled 2 0 0 0 1 0 1 0

Unskilled 9 0 1 0 0 0 0 0

Total 77 69 4 3 2 2 1 3

72% of the NDA employees are females, of whom 66.4% are Africans. Although females dominate 
the organisation’s employment statistics, there is still a need for greater representation of women 
at top and senior management levels to achieve the targets. This will remain a priority in the 
2014/15 financial year.

Levels Male

African Coloured Indian White

Current Target Current Target Current Target Current Target
Top management 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Senior management 1 0 3 0 0 1 0 0

Professional qualified 11 13 1 2 0 1 0 1

Skilled 2 4 0 0 0 0 0 0

Semi-skilled 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Unskilled 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total 28 17 4 2 0 2 0 1

Males make up only 28% of total staff, with Africans comprising 24%.  Other racial groups are not 
proportionally represented and there is a need to review employment equity statistics to ensure 
that race and gender comprise a balanced workforce for compliance purposes.
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The NDA continues to strive for fair representation of people with disabilities. The table below 
details NDA’s disability profile at all occupational levels compared to the internal target.

Levels Disabled Staff

Male Female

Current Target Current Target

Top management 0 0.33% 0 0.33%
Senior management 0 0.33% 1 0.33%
Professional qualified 0 0.34% 0 0.34%
Skilled 1 0.33% 0 0.33%
Semi-skilled 0 0.33% 1 0.33%
Unskilled 0 0.34% 0 0.34%
Total 1 2% 2 2%

Currently the NDA has three employees with certified disabilities, translating to a 2,6 percent target 
for employing people with disabilities. This exceeds the 2% target set by government by 0,6%. 
The NDA demographics employee profile complies with the employment equity plans. However, 
an area of concern is the representation of women at management level. This will be addressed 
through training interventions, career-pathing and accelerated development programmes targeted 
at women.
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REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL TO PARLIAMENT ON THE 
NATIONAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Introduction

1. I have audited the financial statements of the National Development Agency set out on pages 67 
to 95 which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2014 the statement of 
financial performance, statement of changes in net assets and the cash flows statement and the 
statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts for the year then ended, as well as the 
notes, comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory  informa-
tion.

Accounting authority’s responsibility for the financial statements

2. The accounting authority is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these finan-
cial statements in accordance with South African Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting 
Practice (SA Standards of GRAP) and the requirements of the Public Finance Management Act 
of South Africa, 1999 (Act No. 1 of 1999) (PFMA), and section 11 of the National Development 
Agency Act of South Africa, 1998 (Act No. 108 of 1998) and for such internal control as the ac-
counting authority determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor-General’s responsibility

3. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audit. I 
conducted my audit in accordance with the Public Audit Act of South Africa, 2004 (Act No. 25 of 
2004) (PAA), the general notice issued in terms thereof and International Standards on Auditing. 
Those standards require that I comply with ethical requirements, and plan and perform the audit 
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material 
misstatement.

4. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and dis-
closures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judge-
ment,  including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal 
control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order 
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes 
evaluating the appropriateness  of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of account-
ing estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the finan-
cial  statements.

5. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for unqualified audit opinion.
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Opinion

6. In my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial posi-
tion of the National Development Agency as at 31 March 2014 and its financial performance and 
cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance with South African Standards of Generally 
Recognised Accounting Practice (SA Standards of GRAP) and the requirements of the PFMA and 
section 11 of the National Development Agency Act of South Africa, 1998 (Act No. 108 of 1998).

Emphasis of matter

7. I draw attention to the matter below. My opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Restatement of corresponding figures

8.  As disclosed in note 17.1 to the financial statements, the corresponding figures for 31 March 2013 
have been restated as a result of an error discovered during 31 March 2014 in the financial state-
ments of the National Development Agency at, and for the year ended, 31 March 2013.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

9. In accordance with the PAA and the general notice issued in terms thereof, I report the following 
findings on the reported performance information against predetermined objectives for selected 
objectives presented in the annual performance report, non- compliance with legislation as well 
as internal control. The objective of my tests was to identify reportable findings as described un-
der each subheading but not to gather evidence to express assurance on these matters. Accord-
ingly, I do not express an opinion or conclusion on these matters.

Predetermined  objectives

10. I performed procedures to obtain evidence about the usefulness and reliability of the reported per-
formance information for the following selected objectives presented in the annual performance 
report of the public entity for the year ended 31 March 2014:

Programme 1: Development management.
Programme 3: Capacity building.

11. I evaluated the reported performance information against the overall criteria of usefulness and 
reliability.

12. I evaluated the usefulness of the reported performance information to determine whether it was 
presented in accordance with the National Treasury’s annual reporting principles and whether the 
reported performance was consistent with the planned objectives . I further performed tests to 
determine whether indicators and targets were well defined, verifiable, specific, measurable, time 
bound and relevant, as required by the National Treasury’s Framework for managing programme 
performance information (FMPPI).

13. I assessed the reliability of the reported performance information to determine whether it was 
valid, accurate and complete.
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14. I did not raise any material findings on the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance 
information for the selected programmes.

Additional matter

15. I draw attention to the following matter.

Achievement of planned targets

16. Refer to the annual performance report on pages 16 to 37 for information on the achievement of 
planned targets for the year.

Compliance with  legislation

17. I performed procedures to obtain evidence that the public entity had complied with applicable 
legislation regarding financial matters, financial management and other related matters. My find-
ings on material non-compliance with specific matters in key legislation, as set out in the general 
notice issued in terms of the PAA, are as follows:

Financial statements, performance and annual reports

18. The financial statements submitted for auditing were not prepared in all material respects in ac-
cordance with the requirements of section 55(1)(a) and (b) of the PFMA and Generally Recog-
nised Accounting Practices (GRAP) statements. Material misstatements of revenue, expenditure, 
liabilities and disclosure items identified by the auditors were subsequently corrected by manage-
ment, which resulted in the financial statements receiving an unqualified audit opinion.

Procurement and contract management

19. Some goods and services with a transaction value below R500 000 were procured without obtain-
ing the required price quotations, as required by treasury regulation 16A6.1.

20. Some contracts were awarded to bidders who had not submitted a declaration on whether they 
are employed by the state or connected to any person employed by the state, which is prescribed 
in order to comply with treasury regulation 16A8.3.

21. A construction contract was awarded to a contractor that was not registered with the Construction 
Industry Development Board (CIDB) in accordance with section 18(1) of the CIDB Act and CIDB 
regulations 17 and 25(7A).

22. Construction projects were not always registered with the CIDB, as required by section 22 of the 
CIDB Act and CIDB regulation 18.

Expenditure management

23. Effective steps were not always taken to prevent irregular expenditure in terms of section 51(1)(b)
(ii) of the PFMA.
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Internal control

24. I considered internal control relevant to my audit of the financial statements, performance report 
and compliance with legislation. The matters reported below are limited to the significant internal 
control deficiencies that resulted in the findings on non- compliance with legislation included in 
this report.

Leadership

25. Management review controls were not always effective to detect and prevent misstatements re-
sulting from non-compliance with laws and regulations.

26. Action plan was not adequately monitored in order to avoid recurring audit findings, especially in 
the area of compliance with laws and regulations .

Financial and performance management

27. Management did not adequately review and monitor compliance with laws and regulations.

Pretoria
31 July 2014
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Report by the Board on the Annual Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2014

This report is presented in terms of Treasury Regulation 28.1.1, the Public Finance Management Act 1999 
(Act No 1 of 1999) (PFMA), as amended, and is focused on the financial results and financial position of 
the National Development Agency. Information pertaining to the National Development Agency’s state 
of affairs, its business and performance against pre-determined objectives are disclosed elsewhere in 
the annual report. The prescribed disclosure of emoluments in terms of Treasury Regulation 28.1.1 is 
reflected in note 9 of the Annual Financial Statements. 

The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for the preparation and integrity of the Annual Financial 
Statements and related information included in the annual report. In order for the Board to discharge 
these responsibilities, as well as those bestowed on it in terms of the PFMS and other applicable 
legislation, it has developed and maintains a system of internal controls.

The internal controls include a risk-based system of internal accounting and administrative controls 
designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that assets are safeguarded and 
transactions executed and recorded in accordance with generally accepted business practices, as well 
as the Board’s policies and procedures. Monitoring of these controls includes a regular review of their 
operations by the Board and independent oversight by an audit committee.

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with South African Statements of Generally 
Recognised Accounting Practice (GRAP) and incorporate disclosure in line with the accounting 
philosophy of the Board and the requirements of the PFMA. The financial statements are based 
on appropriate accounting policies consistently applied and supported by reasonable and prudent 
judgments and estimates.

The Board believes that the National Development Agency, as an agency of government that is assured 
of continued government funding, will be a going concern in the year ahead and, for this reason, has 
adopted the going concern basis in preparing the Annual Financial Statements.

The Annual Financial Statements, as set out on pages 67 to 95, were approved by the Board on 
xxxxxxxxxxxxx  are signed on its behalf by:

     
Chairperson of the Board   Chief Executive officer 
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Statement of financial performance 
As at 31 March 2014
 Note 2014 Restated

2013
Revenue                R               R
Non-exchange revenue 215 957 507 182 927 537
Transfer revenue 4 215 957 507 182 927 537
Exchange revenue 5 760 050 5 536 332 
Other income 5 699 596 581 103
Net finance income 5 060 454 4 955 229
Total revenue 221 717 557 188 463 869

  
Expenditure  
Mandate expenses 155 258 639 112 932 211
Disbursements to NDA funded  projects 17 73 132 930 68 098 178
Disbursements to third party funded projects 18 10 908 776 9 876 457
Disbursements to third party capacity building programme 18 30 228 000 -
Bio-mas project costs 18 2 960 553 8 599 749
Projects  monitoring and support 3 245 702  2 874 111
Business plans and compliance audits 70 000  -
Due diligence reviews 1 707 367  1 798 849
Baseline studies and projects evaluations 3 934 793  3 441 527
Studies and research commissioned 1 076 000  634 760
Projects branding and launches 2 812 349  513 764
Dialogues and CSO consultations 127 075  436 457
Capacity building support costs 6 830 071  2 819 350
Mandate salary costs 9 17 939 786 13 557 206
Programme Management Unit 285 237 101 803
Resource mobilisation - 180 000

Administration expenses 85 942 495 80 157 944
Accommodation and travel 6 595  174  5 007 240
Audit fees 2 485 666  1 431 097
Board fees 8.1& 8.2 1 008  000  612 922
Provision for bad debts -  171 735
Consulting and professional fees 2 594 969  6 006 706
Depreciation and amortisation 11 & 12 997 625  1 419 567
Loss on retirement of property plant and equipment 11 & 12 124 929  334 923
Marketing and communication 6 2 022 675  1 801 266
Operating leases 10 099 738  9 103 912
Repairs and maintenance 546 150  426 275
Printing and stationery 565 954  1 348 161
Seminars, workshops and conferences 870 821  549 286
Staff costs 9 51 080 909  46 660 914
IT communication costs 2 452 286  2 278 430
Telephone and faxes 775 664  752 781
Relocation of offices 75 582  43 071
Miscellaneous expenses 7 3 646 353  2 209 658

Net deficit 10 (19 483 577) (4 626 286) 
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Statement of financial position 
As at 31 March 2014

Note 2014 Restated                             
2013

Assets R R

Current assets 128 053 454 110 688 284
Cash and cash equivalents 13 126 046 920 108 879 637
Receivables from exchange transactions       14.1 2 271 577 1 538 577
Receivables from non exchange receivables      14.2 86 339 225 070

Non-current assets 3 979 662 3 263 472
Property, plant and equipment 11 3 456 854 2 876 244
Intangible assets 12 522 808 387 228

Total assets 132 033 116 113 951 756

Liabilities

Current liabilities 62 170 791 24 605 854
Payables from exchange transactions        15.1 9 648 808 6 071 679
Payables from non exchange transactions       15.2 12 875 185 915
Short-term employee benefits 16 6 558 420 5 176 920
Provision for committed projects 17 4 779 432 1 077 345
Unutilised third party project funds 19 41 171 256 12 093 995

Total liabilities 62 170 791 24 605 854

Net assets                 69 862 325 89 345 902

Accumulated surplus 69 862 325 89 345 902

Total liabilities and net assets 132 033 116 113 951 756

Statement of changes in net assets
As at 31 March 2014

2014 Restated

2013

R R

Opening accumulated surpluses as previously reported 89 345 902 14 917 450

Adjustment to retained earnings - 1 508

Correction of error - 79 053 230   
Opening accumulated surpluses 89 345 902 93 972 188

Net deficit for the year (19 483 577) (4 626 286)
Balance at 31 March 2014 69 862 325 89 345 902
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Cash flow statement
As at 31 March 2014

Note 2014 2013
R R

Cash flows from operating activities

Receipts
Transfer  revenue 244 869 860 186 053 410
Interest received 5 060 454 4 955 229
Other receipts 699 596 577 676

Payments
To employees and Board members (68 647 195) (60 359 932)
To NDA funded projects (73 286 956) (71 119 312)
To third party managed projects (10 013 218) (10 681 208)
To third party managed capacity building programme (30 228 000) -
To suppliers (49 448 513) (52 926 695)
Net cash inflows/(outflows) from operating activities 20 19 006 028 (3 500 832)

Cash outflows from investing activities
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment and intangible 
assets

11&12 (1 838 745) (1 002 835)

Net cash outflows from investing activities (1 838 745)  (1 002 835)

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 17 167 283 (4 503 667)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 108 879 637 113 383 304
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 13 126 046 920 108 879 637          
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1. Accounting policies

1.1 Principal accounting policies

 The financial statements incorporate the principal accounting policies set out below, which are 
consistent with those adopted in the previous financial year.

1.2 Basis of preparation 

 The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the South African Statements 
of Generally Recognised Accounting Practices (GRAP). 

1.2.1  The following GRAP statements have been issued by the Accounting Standards Board, but
 were not effective at reporting date and were considered in development of applicable accounting 

policies:

- GRAP 18 -    Segment reporting
- GRAP 20  -   Related party disclosure
- GRAP 32  -   Service concession arrangements: grantor    
- GRAP 105 -  Transfer of functions between entities under common control
- GRAP 106 -  Transfer of functions between entities not under common control
- GRAP 107 -  Mergers
- GRAP 108 -  Statutory receivables

1.2.2  The following GRAP Statements were applied by the entity in the current financial year: 

- GRAP 1     -  Presentation of financial statements
- GRAP 2     -   Cash flow statements
- GRAP 3     -   Accounting policies, changes in accounting estimates
- GRAP 9     -   Revenue from exchange transactions
- GRAP 13   -  Leases
- GRAP 17   -  Property, plant and equipment
- GRAP 19   -  Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets
- GRAP 23   -  Revenue from non exchange transactions
- GRAP 24   -  Presentation of budget information
- GRAP 31   -  Intangible assets

1.2.3  The cash flow statement can only be prepared in accordance with the direct method in accordance 
with GRAP 1.

1.2.4   Specific information, such as the following, must be presented separately on the statement of 
financial position in accordance with GRAP 1.

(a)  Receivables from non exchange transactions, including taxes and transfers;
(b)  Taxes and transfers payable; and
(c)  Trade and other payables from exchange transactions;

1.2.5  The amount and nature of any restrictions on cash balances is required and has been disclosed 
in note 13.
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1.3   Functional and presentation currency

 These financial statements are presented in the South African Rand, which is the entity’s 
functional currency.  All financial information presented in South African Rand has been rounded 
to the nearest rand. 

1.4 Committed projects

 Committed project funds represent funds committed in terms of contracted funding to Non-
profit Organisations and Civil Society Organisations that have not yet been disbursed to  these 
organisations by the end of the financial year.

1.5 Commitment

 Commitment represents funds that have been ring-fenced to perform evaluations, branding, 
capacity building of funded projects and remain unspent at the end of the financial year. 

1.6 Project withdrawal

 A project will be withdrawn from committed projects funds when the project no longer meets the 
requirements of a liability, ie there is no present obligation arising from past events and it is not 
probable that settlement of the liability will result in outflow of economic benefits.

1.7 Property, plant and equipment

 Property, plant and equipment, comprising computer equipment, office equipment, furniture and 
motor vehicles, is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment 
losses.

 
 Costs include costs incurred initially to acquire or construct an item of property, plant and equipment 

and costs incurred subsequently to add to, replace part of, or service it. If a replacement cost 
is recognised in the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment, the carrying 
amount of the replaced part is derecognised.

 Subsequent expenditure relating to an item of property, plant and equipment is capitalised when 
it is probable that future economic benefits from the use of the asset will flow to the entity.

 All other subsequent expenditure is recognised as an expense in the period in which it is incurred.

 The surplus or deficit arising from the de-recognition of an item of property, plant and equipment 
is included in the statement of financial performance when the item is derecognised.  The surplus 
or deficit arising from the de-recognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined 
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of the item.

 Depreciation is charged on the straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of assets.
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 The revised estimated maximum useful lives of property, plant and equipment are as follows:

Computer equipment 3 – 10 years
Equipment 6 – 10 years
Furniture 6 – 13 years
Leasehold improvements 3 years

 The useful lives, depreciation methods and the residual values are reviewed on an annual basis 
at the end of each financial year.

 The costs of the day-to-day servicing of property, plant and equipment are recognised in the 
statement of financial performance as they are incurred. 

1.8  Intangible assets

 Intangible assets that are acquired, which have finite useful lives, are measured at cost less 
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. 

 Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits 
embodied in the specific asset to which it relates.  All other expenditure, including expenditure on 
internally generated brands, is recognised in surplus or deficit as incurred.

 Amortisation is recognised in surplus or deficit on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful 
lives of intangible assets from the date that they are available for use. Intangible assets are 
amortised on the straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of five years.

 The surplus or deficit arising from the de-recognition of an intangible asset is recognised as the 
difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of the asset. The 
surplus or deficit from de-recognition of an intangible asset is recognised in the statement of 
financial performance when the asset is derecognised.

1.9  Impairment

 Non-financial assets

 The carrying amounts of the entity’s non-financial assets, other than inventories, are reviewed 
at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such 
indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated as the higher of net selling price and value 
in use.

 In assessing value in use, the expected future cash flows from the asset are discounted to their 
present value using a discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value 
of money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss is recognised whenever the 
carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.

 For an asset that does not generate cash inflows largely independent of those from other assets, 
the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.  
An impairment loss is recognised in the statement of financial performance whenever the carrying 
amount of the cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount.
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 A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates 
used to determine the recoverable amount, however, not to an amount higher than the carrying 
amount that would have been determined (net of depreciation) had no impairment been recognised 
in prior years.

 Financial assets

 A financial asset is assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any objective 
evidence that it is impaired. A financial asset is considered to be impaired if objective evidence 
indicates that one or more events have had a negative effect on the estimated future cash flows 
of that asset.

 An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured at amortised cost is calculated as the 
difference between its carrying amount, and the present value of the estimated future cash flows 
discounted at the original effective interest rate.

 Significant financial assets are tested for impairment on an individual basis. The remaining 
financial assets are assessed collectively in groups that share similar credit risk characteristics.

 All impairment losses are recognised in surplus or deficit.

 An impairment loss is reversed if the reversal can be related objectively to an event occurring 
after the impairment loss was recognised. For financial assets measured at amortised cost the 
reversal is recognised in surplus or deficit.

1.10  Leases

 A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental 
to ownership.  A lease is classified as an operating lease if it does not transfer substantially all the 
risks and rewards incidental to ownership.

 Operating leases

 Leases where the lessor retains the risks and rewards of ownership of the underlying asset are 
classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases are recognised in surplus 
or deficit on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease. The difference between the amounts 
recognised as an expense and the contractual payments are recognised as an operating lease 
asset or liability. This liability is not discounted.

1.11  Financial instruments

 Non-derivative financial instruments

 The entity’s non-derivative financial instruments comprise trade and other receivables, cash and 
cash equivalents, and trade and other payables.

 Non-derivative financial instruments are recognised initially at fair value plus, for instruments not 
at fair value through surplus or deficit, any directly attributable transaction costs.  Subsequent to 
initial recognition non-derivative financial instruments are measured as described below.
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 Financial instruments are accounted for at settlement date using the settlement amount.

 Cash and cash equivalents

 Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits and other short-term 
highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject 
to an insignificant risk of changes in value. The cash balances include cheques not honoured by 
the bank. These are initially and subsequently recorded at fair value.

  Loans and receivables and financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

 These non-derivative financial instruments are measured at amortised cost using the effective 
interest method, less any impairment losses.

 Financial assets for which fair value approximate carrying value

 Fair values of financial assets carried at cost, including cash, deposits with banks, trade 
receivables, short-term receivables and accrued interest are considered to approximate their 
respective carrying values due to their short-term nature.

 Financial liabilities for which fair value approximates carrying value

 The fair values of trade and other payables and accrued liabilities are considered to approximate 
their respective carrying values due to their short-term nature. 

 Offset

 Where a legally enforceable right of offset exists for recognised non-derivative financial 
instruments, and there is an intention to settle the liability and realise the asset simultaneously, 
or to settle on a net basis, all related financial effects are offset.

1.12  External project funding

 External project funding revenue represents conditional funds received from other sources 
(Department of Social Development: Free State ECD, Department of Social Development:  
Mpumalanga and Biomass project funds) with conditions attached to them. These are measured 
at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Exchange revenue comprises finance 
income and other operating income, and is recognised when it is probable that future economic 
benefits will flow to the entity and these benefits can be measured reliably.

 Exchange revenue - finance income

 Finance income comprises interest income on funds invested. Interest income is recognised 
as it accrues in surplus or deficit using the effective interest rate method, taking account of the 
principal outstanding and the effective rate over the period to maturity.

1.13  Finance costs

 Finance costs comprise the interest expense on unwinding of the discount on provisions and 
impairment losses recognised on financial assets.
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1.14  Provisions

 Provisions are recognised when:

•	 the entity has a present obligation as a result of a past event;
•	 it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to 

settle the obligation; and
•	 a reliable estimate can be made of the obligation.

 The amount of a provision is the present value of the expenditure expected to be required to settle 
the obligation.  Where some or all of the expenditure required to settle a provision is expected to 
be reimbursed by another party, the reimbursement shall be recognised when, and only when, it 
is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received if the entity settles the obligation. 

 The reimbursement shall be treated as a separate asset. The amount recognised for the 
reimbursement shall not exceed the amount of the provision.

 Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

 Onerous contracts

 A provision for onerous contracts is recognised when the expected benefits to be derived by the 
agency from a contract are lower than the unavoidable costs of meeting its obligations under 
the contract. The provision is measured at the present value of the lower of the expected cost 
of terminating the contract and the expected net cost of continuing with the contract. Before a 
provision is established, the agency recognises any impairment loss on the assets associated 
with that contract.

1.15  Employee benefits    

 Post-employment benefits

 Retirement

 The entity contributes to a defined contribution plan. A defined contribution plan is a post-
employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed contributions into a separate entity and 
will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts. Obligations for contributions 
to defined contribution pension plans are recognised as an employee benefit expense in surplus 
or deficit when they are due.  Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that 
a cash refund or a reduction in future payments is available.

 Medical

 No contributions are made by the entity to the medical aid of retired employees.

 Short- and long-term benefits

 The cost of all short-term employee benefits, such as salaries, bonuses, medical and other 
contributions is recognised during the period in which the employee renders the related service.
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 A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid under short-term performance bonus 
policy and any leave pay accrued to employees if the entity has a present legal or constructive 
obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the 
obligation can be estimated reliably.

 Termination benefits 

 Termination benefits are payable whenever an employee’s employment is terminated before the 
normal retirement date or whenever an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for 
these benefits. The entity recognises termination benefits when it is demonstrably committed to 
either terminate the employment of current employees according to a detailed formal plan without 
the possibility of withdrawal or to provide termination benefits as a result of an offer made to 
encourage voluntary redundancy. 

1.16  Foreign currency transactions

 A foreign currency transaction is recorded, on initial recognition in Rands, by applying to the 
foreign currency amount the spot exchange rate between the functional currency and the foreign 
currency at the date of the transaction.

 Cash flows arising from transactions in a foreign currency are recorded in Rands by applying to 
the foreign currency amount the exchange rate between the Rand and the foreign currency at the 
date of the cash flow.

2. Public sector practices and policies

2.1      Related parties

 The NDA operates as a public entity within the influence sphere of the National Department of 
Social Development.  In line with prevailing South African government practices the NDA is not 
obliged to reimburse the national department for time spent by its officials on matters pertaining 
to the NDA. The extent of this involvement is not quantifiable and has, consequently, not been 
disclosed in the financial statements.

 
2.2     Irregular, fruitless and wasteful Expenditure

 Fruitless and wasteful expenditure means expenditure that was made in vain and would have 
been avoided had reasonable care been exercised. Irregular expenditure means expenditure 
incurred in contravention of or not in accordance with a requirement of any applicable legislation 
including the PFMA and regulations issued in terms of the PFMA by National Treasury. All 
irregular, fruitless and wasteful expenditure is charged against revenue in the period in which it is 
incurred. 



National Development Agency Annual Report 2013/14
 77

Notes to the Annual Financial statements
For the year ended 31 March 2014

3.     Legal form and registered office of the NDA

 The NDA is a Schedule 3A public entity in terms of the PFMA that was established in terms of 
the National Development Agency Act 1998 (Act No 108 of 1998), as amended. The NDA grants 
funds to civil society organisations that implement development projects in poor communities and 
strengthen the institutional capacity of these organisations as mandated by the Act.
The  entity’s registered offices are as follows:
195 Jan Smuts and 7th Avenue
Parktown North
Johannesburg 
2193

4.       Non exchange revenue 2014 2013
                R             R

Transfer revenue  171 713 000 166 263 000

Utilised specific project funds  (DSD: Free State ECD) 1 410 404 6 359 343

Utilised specific project funds  (Bio-mass project) 2 960 553 6 788 090

Utilised specific project funds  (SASSA School uniforms  
project) 4 777 595 -
Utilised specific project funds  (DSD : Northwest ) 4 000 853 -

Utilised specific project funds  (DSD: Mpumalanga) - 2 225 454

Utilised specific project funds  (DSD : NPO capacity  building 
programme) 30 122 013
Utilised specific project funds  (DSD: Limpopo) - 1 195 250

Utilised specific project funds  ( Economic Development 
Northern Cape ) 719 926 96 400
ECD pledges from donors 88 254 -

Surplus on Biomass project fund 164 909 -

215 957 507 182 927 537

5.       Exchange revenue   

Other income

Proceeds from sale of assets recovered from projects - 15 000

Recoveries from staff for lost assets - 6 019
Management Fees: programme management 640 000 375 000
Recoveries from insurance and staff 59 596 185 084

699 596 581 103

6.       Marketing and communication cost

Advertising 571 115 489 258

Promotional materials 541 507 301 033

Stakeholder engagements 910 053 1 010 975
2 022 675 1 801 266
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7.       Miscellaneous                 2014     2013        

R R

Bank charges    134 575 117 282
Transaction charges 674 669 614 697

Meeting recordings 333 340 211 541
Catering 328 075 179 500
Insurance 296 759 274 069
Postage and courier 191 533 290 519
Security services 12 501 15 069
Donations and sponsorships 492 312 102 005
Media monitoring 105 695 127 593
Software licence renewal 331 340 42 228
Subscriptions and memberships 79 981 96 718
IT consumables 202 972 67 951
Interest and penalties 20 904 -
Offsite Storage 57 857 61 108
Entertainment 12 532 9 378
Adopt an ECD pledges disbursed 88 253 -
Advisory centres 283 055 -

3 646 353  2 209 658

8.1     31 March 2014 – Board fees
Appointment Termination Fees for services

date date as Board member
R

Members of the Board
Mr M Kekana (Chairperson) 01/11/2010 - 217 000
Ms T Shange 01/11/2010 - 123 000
Ms B Khan 01/11/2010 - 147 500
Ms A Madella 01/11/2010 - 91 000
Ms R Mdhlalose 01/11/2010 - - 
Mr M Thabethe* 01/11/2010 - - 
Ms M Malapane 01/11/2010              - 27 500 
Ms M Monakali 01/11/2010 - 48 500
Rev M Xundu 01/11/2010 - 127 500
Ms N Tolashe 01/11/2010 - 27 500
Mr Z Ngcakani 10/01/2012  - 167 500

Audit Committee – Independent member
Mr V Naicker 01/08/2011 08/11 2013 31 000

Total 1 008 000

* These members do not receive Board fees because they are government employees.
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8.2    31 March 2013 – Board fees
Appointment Termination Fees for services

date date as Board member
R

Members of the Board
Mr M Kekana (Chairperson) 01/11/2010 - 153 484
Ms T Shange 01/11/2010 - 105 762
Ms B Khan 01/11/2010 - 81 680
Ms A Madella 01/11/2010 - 49 800
Ms R Mdhlalose 01/11/2010 - - 
Mr M Thabethe* 01/11/2010 - - 
Ms M Malapane* 01/11/2010              - -
Ms M Monakali 01/11/2010 - 46 376
Rev M Xundu 01/11/2010 - 68 500
Ms N Tolashe 01/11/2010 - 33 600
Mr Z Ngcakani 01/10/2012 - 37 880

Audit Committee – Independent member
Mr V Naicker 01/08/2011 - 35 840

Total 612 922

* These members do not receive Board fees because they are government employees.
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9. Staff costs
  

Department 2014 % 2013 %
R split R split

Mandate  staff costs 17 939 786 26% 13 557 206 22%

Direct mandate salaries 17 939 786 26% 13 557 206 22%

Administration and governance  
staff costs 42 862 942 62% 40 154 749 67%
Provincial offices 10 475 034 15% 9 459 098 15%
National offices project admin 4 438 504 6% 4 061 538 7%

Research and development 4 030 756 6% 3 097 805 5%

Internal audit 3 763 079 5% 3 150 293 5%

Office of the CEO 6 106 315 9% 7 435 174 13%

Marketing and communication 3 825 287 6% 3 465 515 6%

Finance and information technology 6 317 290 9% 5 926 127 10%
Human resource 3 906 677 6% 3 559 199 6%

Other staff administrative costs 8 217 967 12% 6 506 165 11%

Staff training cost 833 566 1% 989 433 2%
Performance bonus 2 461 822 4% 369 906           1%
Other staff related costs 4 922 579 7% 5 146 826 8%

Total administration and governance  
staff costs 51 080 909 74% 46 660 914 78%

Total staff costs 69 020 695 100% 60 218 120 100%
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10.     Statement of actuals and budget

Receipts Final budget Actuals Variance
R R R

Transfer revenue 217 614 486 215 957 507 (1 656 979) 
Other income 2 920 000 699 596 (2 220 404)
Net finance income 4 400 000 5 060 454 660 454 
Total receipts 224 934 486 221 717 557 (3 216 929)

Payments 222 463 082 241 201 134 (18 738 052)
Disbursements to NDA funded projects 50 805 000 73 132 930 (22 327 930)
Disbursements to third party projects 10 908 776 10 908 776 -
Third party capacity building programme 33 759 066 30 228 000 3 531 066
Biomass  project expense 2 960 553 2 960 553  - 
Projects monitoring and support 3 400 800 3 245 702 155 098 
Business plans and compliance audits 70 000 70 000  - 
Due diligence reviews 1 715 000 1 707 367 7 633 
Baseline studies and projects evaluations 3 875 000 3 934 793 (59 793)
Studies and research commissioned 1 250 000 1 076 000 174 000 
Projects branding and launches 1 414 700 2 812 349 (1 397 649)
Dialogues and CSO consultations  - 127 075 (127 075)
Capacity building 6 425 000 6 830 071 (405 071)
Mandate salary costs 17 939 681 17 939 786 (105)
Project Management Unit 400 000 285 237 114 763 
Accommodation and travel 7 385 371 6 595 174 790 197 
Audit fees 2 000 000 2 485 666 (485 666)
Board fees 1 025 000 1 008 000 17 000 
Consulting and professional fees 3 121 000 2 594 969 526 031 
Depreciation and amortisation 1 000 000 997 625 2 375 
(Profit)/Loss on disposal of assets  - 124 929 (124 929)
Marketing and communications 3 445 000 2 022 675 1 422 325 
Operating leases 10 572 771 10 099 738 473 033 
Repairs and maintenance 536 424 546 150 (9 726)
Printing and Stationery 1 198 400 565 954 632 446 
Seminars, workshops and conferences 604 700 870 821 (266 121)
Staff costs 49 415 541 51 080 909 (1 665 368)
IT communication costs 3 726 980 2 452 286 1 274 694 
Telephone and faxes 789 020 775 664 13 356 
Relocation of offices 147 000 75 582 71 418 
Miscellaneous expenses 2 572 299 3 646 353 (1 074 054) 
Net receipts /(payments) before Capex 2 471 404 (19 483 577) 21 954 981
Capital expenditure 2 471 404 1 838 745 632 659
Net Receipts /(Payments) - (21 322 322) 21 322 322
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10.1  Disclosure notes on statement of budget and actuals

 The budget is approved on the accrual basis by functional classification. The approved budget 
covers the period from 1 April 2013 to 31 March 2014. Both the budget and accounting bases are 
on the accrual basis. The financial statements are prepared using a classification on the nature 
of the expense in the statement of financial performance.

 The entity considers variances between actual and budget that are greater than ten percent 
(10%) as material and these are explained below:

1.  Revenue

1.1 Transfer revenue (R1 656 979): The variance is due to a prior period error on conditional 
revenue received by NDA.

1.2 Other income  (R2 110 404): This negative variance is  due to funds transferred from 
accumulated funds  for  the purpose of  funding  expenditure that was ring-fenced from 
prior year allocations.

2. Expenditure

2.1 Poverty alleviation projects  (-R22 327 930): This negative  variance is due to correction 
of error per note 18 below which was effected in  the current year

2.2 Third party managed funds (R3 531 066): This underspending is due to the correction of 
error per note 18 below which was effected in the current year.

2.3  Studies and research (R174 000): This underspending is due to efficiency savings, all 
planned studies on the annual performance plan were conducted.

2.4 Branding and launches (R1 397 649): This variance is due to a launch that was more 
costly than was anticipated.

2.5 Project Management Unit (R114 763): This underspending is due to delays in the 
implementation of the project management unit.

2.6 Audit fees (-R 485 666): This overspending was due to higher actual fees than was 
anticipated during budgeting process.

2.7 Consulting and professional fees (R526 031): This underspending is due to efficiency 
savings resulting in less work being outsourced than was anticipated during budgeting.

2.8 Marketing and communications (R1 422 325): This underspending is due to an activity 
that was planned but did not materialise due to delays in awarding of a tender.

2.9 Printing and stationery (R632 446): This underspending was due to efficiency savings.
2.10 Seminars and conferences (44%): This over-expenditure is due to a workshop that was 

planned and budgeted for in 2013 financial year, but took place at the beginning of 2014.
2.11 IT communication costs (R1 274 694): This underspending is due to a  systems project 

that was planned in the current year, but later deferred to the next  financial year.
2.12 Relocation of offices (R71 418)
2.13 Miscellaneous expense (R1 074 054): This overspending is partly due to software 

licensing that was not anticipated in the current year budget.



National Development Agency Annual Report 2013/14
 85

Notes to the Annual Financial statements
For the year ended 31 March 2014

11. Property, plant and equipment

11.1   31 March 2014 Depreciation Cost Accumulated Carrying
rate depreciation amount

% R R R
Computer equipment 12.50 - 33,33 3 715 883 (1 730 964) 1 984 919
Office equipment 10.00 - 16.67 1 070 691 (717 050) 353 641
Furniture 10.00 - 16.67 2 515 965 (1 495 795) 1 020 170
Leasehold 
improvements 33.33 1 177 512 (1 079 388) 98 124

8 480 051 (5 023 197) 3 456 854
    

Reconciliation of carrying amounts:  

Computer
equipment

Office
equipment

Furniture Lease 
improvements

Motor 
vehicles

Total

R R R R R R
Carrying amount  
1 April 2013 999 702 346 248 1 038 645 490 629     1 020 2 876 244
Additions during 
the year 1 359 994 177 963 300 788                       - - 1 838 745
Disposals (70 545) (29 589) (23 164)          -    - (123 298)
Depreciation 
during the year (577 627) (137 491) (290 106)         (392 505) (1 020) (1 398 749)
Adjusted 
depreciation 273 395 (3 490) (5 993) - - 263 912
Carrying amount  
31 March 2014 1 984 919 353 641 1 020 170 98 124 - 3 456 854

 Proceeds from insurance to the value of R55 374 (R90 798) to replace assets stolen during the 
year have been included in the reported deficit.

11.2  Changes in estimates

  In terms of GRAP 17 Property, plant and equipment, the useful lives of all assets were reviewed 
by management at year end. The remaining useful life expectations of some of the assets differed 
from previous estimates. The effect of the revision is a decrease of R263 911 in the depreciation 
charge for the current period ending 31 March 2014.

11.2   31 March 2013 Depreciation Cost Accumulated Carrying
rate depreciation amount

% R R R
Computer equipment 12.50 - 33,33 3 048 072 (2 048 370)  999 702
Office equipment 10.00 - 16.67 1 083 905 (737 657)  346 248
Furniture 10.00 - 16.67 2 292 175 (1 253 530) 1 038 645
Motor vehicles             33.33 1 177 512 (686 883)  490 629
Leasehold Improvements 20 97 959 (96 939)       1 020

7 699 623 4 823 379 2 876 244
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Reconciliation of carrying amounts:  

Computer
equipment

Office
equipment

Furniture Lease 
improvements

Motor 
vehicles

Total

R R R R R R
Carrying amount 
1 April 2012 1 108 214 723 675 835 380 883 134 - 3 550 403
Additions during 
the year 476 401 38 617 451 223 - - 966 241
Disposals during 
the year (85 845) (237 349) (11 729) - - (334 923)
Depreciation 
during the year (588 756) (181 669) ( 240 523)       (392 505) - (1 403 453
Adjusted 
depreciation 89 688 2 974 4 294 - 1 020 97 976
Carrying amount 
31 March 2013 999 702 346 248 1 038 645 490 629 1 020 2 876 244

                                                                                             
12. Intangible assets

12.1   31 March 2014 Amortisation Cost Accumulated Carrying
 rate amortisation amount

% R R R
ERP system 20 1 944 104 (1 535 115) 408 989
Project monitoring system & 
other software

20
174 810 (60 991) 113 819

2 118 914 (1 596 106) 522 808

Reconciliation of carrying amounts:
ERP system Project 

monitoring and 
other software

Total

R R R
Carrying amount 1 April 
2013

167 350 219 878 387 228

Disposals -             (1 631) (1 631)
Adjusted amortisation 241 639 (104 428) 137 211
Carrying amount 31 March 2014 408 989 113 819 522 808

12.2   31 March 2013 Amortisation Cost Accumulated Carrying
rate amortisation amount

% R R R
ERP system 20 1 721 303 (1 553 953) 167 350
Project monitoring system & 
other software 20 742 673 (522 795) 219 878

2 463 976 (2 076 748) 387 228



National Development Agency Annual Report 2013/14
 87

Notes to the Annual Financial statements
For the year ended 31 March 2014

12.2   31 March 2013 (continued)

Reconciliation of carrying amounts:
ERP system Project 

monitoring and
Total

other software
R R R

Carrying amount 1 April 
2012

200 819 263 904 464 723

Additions during the year - 36 594 36 594
Amortisation during the year (200 819) (117 224) (318 043)
Adjusted amortisation 167 350 36 604 203 954
Carrying amount 31 March 2013 167 350 219 878 387 228

13. Cash and cash equivalents 2014 2013
R R

Cash on hand 18 681 19 627
Call and current accounts 80 894 734 47 441  947
Money market accounts 45 133 505 61 418 063

126 046 920 108 879 637

The investments and bank balances are held at reputable South African banks and none of 
the cash is encumbered. Of the cash held by the NDA of R126 046 920 (2013: R108 879 637), 
R64 513 543. 

(2013: R82 643 864) represents funds committed to projects at the end of the financial year. 
Also included in the cash balances are funds managed on behalf of third parties to the value of 
R41 171 256 (2013: R12 093 995). 

14. Receivables 2014 2013
R R

14.1   Receivables from exchange transactions
Interest accrued 351 382 185 791
Rental deposits 1 568 813 1 397 786

2 271 577 1 583 577

14.2   Receivables from non exchange transactions

Employee related advances 25 175 16  372
Other receivables 367 105 527 640

392 280 544 012

Provision for doubtful debts (305 941) (318 942)

86 339 225 070 

The above exchange receivables were not considered for aging and credit quality because these 
were not considered trade receivables. For all other categories of receivables there is no credit 
risk other than the rental deposits.
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15.     Payables 2014 2013
R R

15.1    Payables from exchange transactions
Trade payables 9 068 931 5 133 348
Operating lease liabilities 579 877 938 331

9 648 808 6 071 679

15.2     Payables from non exchange transactions
Staff creditors (travel claims) 7 795 148 114
Other creditors 5 080 37 801

12 875 185 915

The above creditors are not past their due dates and the terms and conditions of these creditors 
have not been renegotiated.

16. Short-term employee benefits 2014 2013
R R

Accrual for leave 
Opening balance 3 141 664 3 126 585
Provision raised 887 598 598 984
Leave pay-out (338 445) (583 905)
Closing balance 3 690 817 3 141 664

Accrual for 13th cheque
 - Opening balance 461 689 352 323
 - Provision raised 1 919 074 1 600 902
 - Pay-out (1 897 558) (1 491 536)
 - Closing balance 483 205 461 689

Accrual for performance bonus
 - Opening balance 1 573 568 1 226 905
 - Provision raised 2 461 823 369 905
 - Pay-out (1 650 993) (23 243)
 - Closing balance 2 384 398 1 573 567

Total employee benefits accruals 6 558 420 5 176 920

 17.    Provision for committed projects 

Opening balance 1 077 345 4 098 479
Approved for payment to NDA funded projects 73 132 930 68 098 178
Approved for payment to third party projects 10 908 778 -
Cash disbursements to NDA funded projects (73 286 956) (71 119 312)
Cash disbursed to third party managed funds (7 052 665) -
Closing balance 4 779 432 1 077 345

The provision for committed projects represents payments approved to be disbursed to funded 
projects during the financial year. 



National Development Agency Annual Report 2013/14
 89

Notes to the Annual Financial statements
For the year ended 31 March 2014

18.   Correction of error

During 2014, the entity discovered that the application of accounting policy for project liability was 
not in compliance with the Accounting Standards. The entity previously recognised the full project 
liability and related expense upon signing of the funding agreement. During the current year the 
NDA identified that the project liability arises upon approval and disbursement of payments to 
projects.  

During the financial year management identified that it had incorrectly released revenue to the 
statement of financial performance from deferred revenue to the value of R1 811 659 which 
resulted in an overstatement of revenue.

During the financial year, management identified that funds committed for project evaluations 
(Note 24.1) were previously disclosed incorrectly. Management had previously disclosed only the 
current year’s funds that were committed and not the cumulative amount that remains unspent 
at the end of the financial year.

The effect the errors on the current and prior periods are disclosed below.

Note 2013 2012
R R

Statement of financial position
Liability (provision for projects) 3 590 630 (79 053 230)
Deferred revenue 1 811 659 -

Statement of financial performance
Expense (3 590 630) -
Non exchange revenue (1 811 659) -

Statement of changes in net assets
Opening accumulated surplus - 79 053 230

Notes to the financial statements: commitments 
Committed project funds                                                         24.2 82 648 864 79 053 230
Committed project evaluation funds                                         24.1 4 968 859 -

19.     Unutilised external project funds 2014 2013
R R

Opening balance 12 093 995 9 772 873
Funds received from partners 73 156 860 20 797 328
Funds disbursed and committed – third party 
funded projects (44 079 599) (18 476 206)
Closing balance 41 171 256 12 093 995

Unutilised external project funds represents funds received and managed by the entity to 
implement poverty alleviation projects on behalf of other government departments and partners. 
The balance outstanding represents the portion of the funds received that remain unspent as at 
the end of the financial year in terms of the agreements entered into with the funders. 
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20. Note to the cash flow statement                                                           2014 Restated 
2013

R R
Deficit  from operations (19 483 577) (4 626 286)
Adjusted for non-cash flow items:
Depreciation and amortisation 997 626 1 419 567
Provision for doubtful debts -         171 735
Adjustment to accumulated funds -             1 508
Loss on retirement of property, plant and equipment 124 929         334 923
Operating (deficit)/surplus before changes in working capital (18 361 022) (2 698 553)

(Increase)/ decrease in accounts receivable (197 888) (175 167)
Increase in accounts payable and provisions 33 862 850 582 361
(Increase)/ decrease in provision for projects 3 702 087 (1 209 473)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating activities 19 006 028 (3 500 832)
                                                                                                                   

21.   Financial risk management

The entity has exposure to the following risks from the use of financial instruments:

• credit risk
• liquidity risk
• interest rate risk

This note presents information about the entity’s exposure to each of the above risks, the entity’s 
objectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing risk, and the entity’s management 
of capital. Further quantitative disclosures are included throughout these financial statements.

The Board has the overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the entity’s risk 
management framework. The Board has established the Audit and Risk Committee, which is 
responsible for developing and monitoring the entity’s risk management policies. The committee 
reports regularly to the Board of Directors on its activities.

The entity’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by 
the entity, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. 
Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market 
conditions and the entity’s activities. The entity, through its training and management standards 
and procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all 
employees understand their roles and obligations.

Credit risk 

Credit risk is the risk that the counter-party to a financial asset will default on its obligation, in 
part or in total, thereby causing loss to the entity. This risk is being managed by the entity by only 
investing funds at large reputable financial institutions in the Republic of South Africa. 
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Liquidity risk 

Liquidity risk is the risk that the counter-party to a financial asset will default on its obligation, in 
part or in total, due to not having cash flows to settle an obligation when it falls due.  This risk is 
being managed by the entity by only investing funds at large reputable financial institutions in the 
Republic of South Africa. 

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial asset will fluctuate due to movements in 
market interest rates. The entity is exposed to interest rate risk as certain investments are held 
in money market unit trusts. 

22.  Financial instruments

22.1 Credit risk

Exposure to credit risk

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit risk exposure of the 
entity. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date was:

Carrying amount               Carrying amount               
 2014 2013

R R
Cash and cash equivalents 126 046 920 108 879 637
Trade and other receivables 2 006 534 1 808 647

128 053 454 110 688 284

The maximum exposure to credit risk for trade receivables at the reporting date by type of customer 
was:

                                                                                           
Carrying amount              Carrying amount              

2014      2013
  R          R

Private institutions 1 981 359 1 720 545
Employee advances 25 175 16 372

2 006 534 1 736 917

Carrying amount              Carrying amount              
2014 2013

R R
Impairment losses
Impairment provision  at beginning  of year  318 941 159 900 
Impairments during the year (13 000) 159 041

305 941 318 941
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22.2 Liquidity risk

The following are contractual maturities of financial liabilities, including estimated interest 
payments and excluding the impact of netting agreements:

31 March 2014 Carrying Contractual 6 months 6 – 12 12 months
amount cash flows or less months or more

R R R R R
Trade and other payables 9 661 683 9 661 683 9 661 683 - -
Short-term employee 
benefits 6 558 420 6 558 420 - 6 558 420 -
Provision  for committed 
projects 4 779 432 4 779 432 4 779 432 - -
Unutilised external income 
received in advance 41 171 256 41 171 256 - 41 171 256 -

62 170 791 62 170 791 14 444 115 47 729 676 -

22.3 Liquidity risk (continued)

31 March 2013 Carrying Contractual 6 months 6 – 12 12 months
amount cash flows or less months or more

R R R R R
Trade and other payables 6 257 594 6 257 594 6 257 594 - -
Short-term employee benefits 5 176 920 5 176 920 - 5 176 921 -
Provision for committed 
projects 1 077 345 1 077 345 1 077 345 - -
Unutilised third party project 
funds 12 093 995 12 093 995 - 12 093 995 -

24 605 854 24 605 854 7 334 939 17 270 916 -

22.4  Interest rate risk

Profile

At the reporting date the interest rate profile of the entity’s interest bearing financial instruments 
was:

Carrying amount               Carrying amount               
 2014 2013

R R
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables 126 046 920  108 879 637
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Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instrument

A change of 100 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would have increased 
(decreased) net assets and the net surplus/ deficit by the amounts shown below. This analysis 
assumes that all other variables, in particular foreign currency rates, remain constant. 

Cash and cash equivalents - 1% increase 1 260 469 1 088 797
Cash and cash equivalents - 1% decrease (1 260 469) (1 088 797)

22.5 Fair values

Fair values versus carrying amounts

The fair values of financial assets and liabilities, together with the carrying amounts shown on the 
balance sheet, are as follows:

31 March 2014 31 March 2013
Carrying 
amount

Fair value Carrying 
amount

Fair value

R R R R
Cash and cash equivalents 126 046 920 126 046 920 108 879 637 108 879 637
Trade and other receivables 2 006 534 2 006 534 1 808 647 1 808 647
Trade and other payables (9 661 683) (9 661 683) (6  257 594) (6 257 594)
Provision  for committed projects (4 779 432) (4 779 432) (1 077 345)       (1 077 345)
Short term employee benefits (6 558 420) (6 558 420) (5 176 920) (5 176 920)
Unutilised external project funds (41 171 256) (41 171 256) (12 093 995) (12 093 995)

65 882 663 65 882 663 86 082 430 86 082 430

23.    Taxation

  No provision has been made for Income Taxation as the National Development Agency is exempt 
from Income Taxation in terms of section 30 of the Income Tax Act of 1962 as amended.

24.    Operating lease commitment

Not later
than 1 year

Between 2 
and 5 years

Total

R R R
31 March 2014
Total future minimum lease payments under 
operating lease contracts 5 029 117 6 355 731 11 384 848

  
31 March 2013
Total future minimum lease payments under 
operating lease contracts 6 244 734 2 907 485 9 152 219
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25. Commitments

25.1 Committed project evaluations 

At the end of the financial year management had approved and ring-fenced an amount of 
R20 843 333 (2013: R11 571 713) for project evaluations. The expenditure has not yet been 
incurred at the end of the financial year.

25.2 Committed project funds

At the end of the financial year the entity had committed funds in terms of contracted funding 
to Non-profit Organisations and Civil Society Organisations that have not yet been disbursed to 
these organisations  by the end of the financial year:

2014 2013
R R

Funds committed to projects  64 513 543 82 643 864

26.  Contingent asset

 During the criminal investigation of the accounts clerk who misappropriated NDA funds, assets to 
the value of R3 100 000 (2012: R2 700 000) were recovered by the Asset Forfeiture Unit (AFU). 
The AFU will pay over the balance of the liquidated assets less their expenses, over to the NDA.  
At the reporting date the AFU was still to apply for realisation order prior to paying over the 
recovered assets less a portion of their administrative costs to the NDA.

27. Related party transactions

27.1 Department of Social Development

 A related party relationship exists between the NDA and the Department of Social Development. 
The two parties did not enter into any transactions with each other, save for the transfer of the 
annual grant by the Department of Social Development to the NDA.                      

  
27.2 Board members and key management personnel

 A related party relationship exists between the NDA, its directors and key management personnel.  
The only transactions between the three parties relate to remuneration for services rendered, 
and have been disclosed in note 8.

28. Irregular, fruitless and wasteful expenditure

 Section 51(e) of the PFMA requires the Accounting Authority of a public entity to take effective 
and appropriate disciplinary steps against any employee of the public entity who:

•	 Contravenes or fails to comply with a provision of the Act;
•	 Commits an act which undermines the financial management and internal control system 

of  the public entity; or
•	 makes or permits an irregular, fruitless and wasteful expenditure
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28.1   Reconciliation of irregular expenditure 2014 2013
R R

Opening balance 9 973 461 9 456 180
Irregular expenditure current year 4 558 454 17 094 323
Previous years irregular expenditure identified in current year -       204 278
Irregular expenditure condoned - (16 781 320)
Closing balance 14 531 915 9 973 461

28.2    Analysis of irregular expenditure awaiting condonation

Current year 4 558 454 9 973 461
Previous year 9 973 461 -
Closing balance 14 531 915 9 973 461

28.3   Details of irregular expenditure – Current year  Steps taken        2014

Requisite number of quotes per policy not obtained Pending investigation  1 598 380
Procurement process not followed    Pending investigation 2 960 074      

  4 558 454

28.4   Reconciliation of fruitless and wasteful expenditure

Opening balance 602 874   373 087   
Fruitless and wasteful expenditure current year 46 249  229 787   

649  123 602 874
                                                                                                         

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure reported above represents the following:

2014
- R20 951: penalties on late payment of Pay as You Earn to SARS and Telkom
- R25 298: tender advertising expenditure incurred twice
 
2013
- R229 787: governance audit performed by both external provider and internal audit.
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Provincial offices

Nokulunga Skeyi
Provincial Manager

Eastern Cape
1st Floor Vincedon Office Park

8 Donald Road
Vincent, East London

Tel: 043 721 1226 /7
Fax: 043 721 2096

E-Mail: ecaperegion@nda.org.za

Vacant
Provincial Manager

Free State
3rd floor, Allied House

cnr Charlotte Maxeke and Westburger
Bloemfontein

Tel: 051 430 2024
Fax: 051 430 2024

E-Mail: freestateprovince@nda.org.za

Yolisa Ndima
Provincial Manager

Kwazulu Natal
Suite 1201 Nedbank Centre

Durban Club Place, (303 Smit Street), Durban

Tel 031 305 5542
Fax 031 305 5140

E-Mail: kznprovince@nda.org.za

Zach Chuenyane
Provincial Manager

Limpopo
Suite 8, Albatross Centre

19 Market Street
Polokwane

Tel 015 291 2492
Fax 015 295 7586

E-Mail: limpopoprovince@nda.org.za
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Provincial offices

Maxwell Mathebula
Provincial Manager

Mpumalanga
16 Branders Street

Biwaters Building, Nelspruit
Tel 013 755 3777

Fax 013 753 2244
E-Mail: mpumalangaprovince@nda.org.za

David Potlako Ntlatleng
Provincial Manager

North West
Office 0113A First Floor
West Gallery Mega City

Mmabatho

Tel 018 392 6892
Fax 018 392 5432

E-Mail: northwestprovince@nda.org.za

Clive Moses
Provincial Manager

Northern Cape
13 Delham Road
Kimberley, 8301

Tel 053 831 4828 /9
Fax 053 831 4824

E-Mail: northerncapeprovince@nda.org.za

Mapule Phora
Provincial Manager

Gauteng
10th Floor, Braamfontein Centre

23 Jorissen Street
Braamfontein 2001

Tel 011 339 6410
Fax 011 339 6410

E-Mail: gautengprovince@nda.org.za

Adriel Soeker
Provincial Manager

Western Cape
2nd Floor

50 Keerom Street
Cape Town 8001

Tel 021 422 5175
Fax 021 422 5180

E-Mail: westerncapeprovince@nda.org.za
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As a development agency, we subscribe to the following 
values which are embedded in our performance 
management system:

- Integrity;
- Dignity;
- Empowerment;
- Accountability & responsibility;
- Transparency;
- Excellent; and
- Partnering. ”

“
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